Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

- CABINET

Date & Time

-

TUESDAY, 7TH MAY, 2013 AT 9.30 AM

Venue

-

NORFOLK ROOM, THE CONFERENCE
SUITE, ELIZABETH HOUSE, DEREHAM

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least
two working days before the meeting. If the information requested is
available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

The Cabinet
Mr J.W. Nunn (Chairman)
Mr M. A. Wassell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor E. Gould
Mrs L.S. Turner

Mr M.A. Kiddle-Morris
Mr I. Sherwood
Mr W.H.C. Smith

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONES

Member Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Friday, 26 April 2013

Please ask for Julie Britton: Telephone (01362) 656343
e-mail: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

Cabinet
07 May 2013

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC
Page(s)
herewith

1.

MINUTES

1 - 10

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2013.
2.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act
1972.

4.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members are no longer required to declare personal or prejudicial
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
that are not currently included in the Register of Interests. Members
are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to
participate and must leave the room, for the whole of an agenda item
to which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.
In the interests of transparency, Members may also wish to declare
any other interests they have in relation to an agenda item, that
support the Nolan principles detailed within the Code of Conduct.

5.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the meeting.

6.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY)

7.

CAPITAL OUT-TURN 2012/13

11 - 17

Report of Michael Wassell, Executive Member for Finance &
Democratic Services.
8.

DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

18 - 39

Report of Ian Sherwood, Executive Member for Performance &
Business Development.
9.

ANGLIA REVENUES AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP
Report of the meeting of the Joint Committee held on 14 March 2013.

40 - 56

Cabinet
07 May 2013
Page(s)
herewith

10.

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL (FOR INFORMATION)
To note the Minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2013.

11.

NEXT MEETING
To note that the date of the next meeting of Cabinet will be held on
18 June 2013 at 9.30am in the Norfolk Room.

57 - 61

Agenda Item 1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
CABINET
Held on Tuesday, 26 March 2013 at 9.30 am in
Norfolk Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr J.W. Nunn (Chairman)
Mr M. A. Wassell (ViceChairman)
Mrs L.S. Turner

Mr M.A. Kiddle-Morris
Mr I. Sherwood
Mr W.H.C. Smith

Also Present
Mr S.G. Bambridge
Mr J.P. Cowen
Mr P.J. Duigan
Mr T. J. Jermy
Mr A.P. Joel
Mrs E. M. Jolly
Mrs S.M. Matthews

Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr M J Nairn
Mrs J A North
Mr M. S. Robinson
Mr F.J. Sharpe
Mrs P.A. Spencer

In Attendance
Dominic Chessum

-

Paul Jackson
Robert Walker
Julie Britton
David Spencer
Natalie Beal

-

Stephen James

-

Phil Mileham

-

Martin Pendlebury

-

Sarah Robertson

-

Trevor Holden

-

Joint Marketing & Communications
Team Leader
Planning Manager
Assistant Director of Commissioning
Senior Committee Officer
Joint Deputy Planning Manager
Planning Policy Officer (Capita
Symonds for Breckland Council)
PFI Monitoring & Strategic Sports
Officer
Planning Policy Team Leader (Capita
Symonds for Breckland Council)
Director of Planning & Business
Manager*
Planning Policy Officer (Capita
Symonds for Breckland Council)
Interim Chief Executive
Action By

23/13 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)
The Minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2013 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
1

1

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

24/13 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)
An apology for absence was received from Elizabeth Gould.
25/13 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING

(AGENDA ITEM 5)
Mesdames E Jolly. S Matthews, L Monument, J North and P Spencer and
Messrs G Bambridge, P Cowen, P Duigan, T Jermy, A Joel, M Nairn, M
Robinson and F Sharpe.
26/13 LOCAL PLAN WORKING GROUP (AGENDA ITEM 7)
The Executive Member for Internal Services had observed that this was
the fifth revision of the timetable for the Local Plan.
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Local Plan Working Group meeting
held on 6 March 2013 be adopted.
27/13 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (SCI) (AGENDA

ITEM 8)
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was a Council policy
setting out how the community would be involved in the production of
planning policy documents and determination of planning applications.
The Executive Member for Assets & Strategic Development reported that
there had been many changes to planning regulations since the adoption
of the previous SCI in 2006. There was also a new piece of legislation
under the Localism Act called ‘Duty to Co-operate’ which required all
Local Planning Authorities and other organisations to engage with each
other on strategic planning matters.
The Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission said that this
document had already been included on the Commission’s Work
Programme for the meeting on 6 June 2013. He stated that this ‘Duty to
Co-operate’ was all very well but the efforts to persuade these statutory
bodies to attend Overview & Scrutiny Commission’s meetings to discuss
planning matters such as infrastructure had not been successful. The
Executive Member for Assets & Strategic Development totally agreed with
the aforementioned comments but Council’s now had a statutory duty to
demonstrate that efforts had been made to consult. In response to a
question about what could be done if all efforts to engage with these
organisations failed, the Chief Executive stated that this area had not
been tested in law therefore it would be interesting to see how this
proceeds.
Options
(1)

Cabinet approves the content of the Statement of Community
Involvement (SCI) for consultation between 2 April and 3rd May
2013;
2

2

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

(2)

Cabinet approves the SCI but considers is should not be consulted
on and should move to adoption at the next available Full Council
meeting (23 May 2013);

(3)

Cabinet approves the SCI but requests a longer consultation period;
or

(4)

Cabinet rejects the content of the SCI and requests further
amendments and reconsideration.

Reasons
The Statement of Community Involvement meets the requirements of the
regulations, and reflected existing practices as well as setting out clearly
how the Council would engage with communities and stakeholders on
development management decisions and planning policy. The SCI had
been set out in a logical manner, with the use of plain English to make it
accessible.
RESOLVED that:
(1)

the content of the Statement of Community Involvement be
approved; and

(2)

authority to commence the public consultation between 2nd April and
3rd May 2013 be approved.

28/13 BRECKLAND COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY -

PRELIMINARY DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE AND VIABILITY
ASSESSMENT (AGENDA ITEM 9)
The purpose of the report was for Members to consider the findings of the
CIL viability assessment, and review the Preliminary Draft Charging
Schedule and agree this for a period of pubic consultation.
As this had been a very complicated piece of calculation that the Planning
Policy Team had put together, the Executive Member for Assets &
Strategic Development had asked the Planning Policy Team to provide a
small presentation to Members which described the viability of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
The Planning Policy Team Leader presumed that everyone knew what
CIL was; however, for those who did not, he explained that a CIL
represented a tax on new development over 100sqm and was intended to
produce a fairer system for the funding of community infrastructure than
the existing use of Section 106 Agreements. Furthermore, the role and
use of such Agreements was being scaled back through national planning
regulations which would come into effect from April 2014. Due to these
changes to the S106 process the production and implementation of a CIL
for Breckland Council had become imperative.
The approach taken in the viability assessment was to consider a range
of notional development scenarios that aimed to demonstrate whether
there were variances in viability across the district for particular land uses.
This approach was in accordance with best practice and had been
3

3

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

adopted in other Local Authority CIL viability assessments that were
further progressed through the process. The viability of the scenarios had
been assessed using the residual valuation method.
The extent of any changes in viability across the District could warrant
multiple zones or charges per different types of development. Some
areas, for example in London, just one CIL was being charged.
For
Breckland, there was evidence that a single rate could not be introduced
due to the viability differences between residential and other commercial
developments. The variations across Breckland had been particularly
notable for the approach to residential development which had been
characterised by a number of different sales value areas. This had been
confirmed in the latest viability assessment from a review of residential
sales data supplied from the Council’s Hometrack system. This had
established that when looking solely at sales values there were, in effect,
three residential zones in Breckland. The first zone included the market
town of Attleborough and the majority of rural parishes within the District.
These had the highest residential sales values within the District and
consequently, proposals would result in a greater overall development
value. The second residential sales value zone included the market
towns of Dereham, Swaffham and Watton plus a number of the rural
parishes to the west of Dereham. The third, was Thetford. Residential
sales values within the town (for all property types) were lower than seen
in the rest of the District.
From April 2014, local authorities would not be able to pool any more than
five planning obligations for projects or specific types of infrastructure.
Therefore, the implementation of CIL would provide that flexibility in the
pooling and spending of monies from development and could be spent on
any identified infrastructure need, unlike S106 Agreements which required
a direct link between the development and any infrastructure project.
There would be CIL exemptions, all affordable housing, structures into
which people did not go (for the purposes of inspecting or maintaining
machinery), redevelopments that did not result in a net increase in
floorspace and development for charitable purposes.
The Department for Communities and Local Government released
guidance in January 2013 for Local Authorities on the level of CIL receipts
which would be payable to the local community. Parishes without a
Neighbourhood Plan would receive 15% of the CIL receipt which is
capped at £100 per dwelling and for those who had adopted such a Plan
would receive 25% of the CIL receipt and would not be capped.
Currently, in Breckland, there were no adopted Neighbourhood Plans.
The Planning Policy Officer then took Members through the various
scenarios via a presentation and highlighted the viability assessment’s
findings which had all been tested against Breckland’s Policy
requirements. These scenarios indicated that there were certain forms of
development across the District that could support a CIL charge such as
retail superstores outside town centre boundaries, residential care homes,
holiday accommodation and hotels.
Councillor Monument queried the rate per square metre quoted in the
table on page 55 of the agenda and the figure that had been shown on
4

4

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

the presentation – the figures were different and she asked for an
explanation. The Planning Policy Team Leader explained that this figure
was about what the market was actually doing at the time, based on
different percentages.
In concluding the presentation, the S106 Agreement slide was shown
which highlighted that S106 monies could still be charged in the urban
extensions of Attleborough and Thetford.
A draft Breckland Infrastructure list was then tabled at the meeting that
brought together the infrastructure requirements of development in the
Breckland District and indicated the estimated cost and how that item of
infrastructure would be funded.
The Executive Member for Assets & Strategic Development drew
Members’ attention to paragraph 4.2 of the report that highlighted the
level of funding arising from CIL based on the conclusions of the viability
assessment. This highlighted a slight increase in the total infrastructure
cost within the District to £233million. However, the main difference was
the cost of infrastructure which the Council expected to come forward
through S106 Agreements on the identified urban extensions (mentioned
above) which had risen to £195million. Committed public and utility
company funding of £15.2million had also been identified, leaving a
funding gap of £22.3million for infrastructure. CIL could generate
£9.09million gross based on the expected level of growth; therefore, there
was likely to remain a funding gap of £13.21million. This funding gap
could be increased due to a meaningful proportion of the money raised
from CIL going to local parishes.
Referring to the 25% payable if a Parish had a Neighbourhood Plan in
place, Councillor North asked if the same percentage amount would be
payable if a S106 Agreement was entered into for the urban extension. In
response, Members were informed that this would not be the case but if
other developments in Attleborough came forward these could be
charged CIL which would allow for the meaningful proportion to be
passed to the community. The Executive Member for Assets & Strategic
Development explained that the S106 monies were solely for
infrastructure within the urban extension. For the proposed relief road it
would be better to go down the S106 route. The 25% CIL monies were
not ring-fenced but must still be used for infrastructure purposes within
the town.
Councillor Bambridge raised a number of concerns. Firstly, in reference
to the CIL charging zones in his Ward areas, he did not consider it to be
fair that some areas could charge for CIL and others could not. Secondly,
he felt it was wrong that some commercial development did not attract
any CIL, and his last point was in relation to the way that this had all been
calculated on notional schemes and felt that it should have been
calculated on an historical scheme. The Executive Member for Assets &
Strategic Development stated that the Inspectors were looking for CIL not
to interfere with any development. He further advised that Breckland
Council would likely fall foul of ‘state aid’ rules if the £60sqm was
artificially reduced to zero. Councillor Bambridge said that he had no
problem with the £60sqm it was the zero rate that he objected to.
5

5

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

The Chairman picked up on the aforementioned point about different CIL
rates in neighbouring villages and asked how Members would go about
explaining this to their parishes. The Planning Policy Team Leader stated
that the zones had been derived using information from Breckland’s
Hometrack system. Additional information could emerge and would be
looked at through the consultation process. Picking up on the point about
commercial rates, it was explained that bumping along on a low CIL
would discourage the majority of commercial developments proposed in
the district which was an approach not supported by the CIL Regulations.
Councillor Bambridge asked if he was correct in thinking that if a CIL rate
was set for an area it could, over time, be adjusted but if there was a zero
CIL rate this could not. Members were informed that CIL rates would be
reconsidered after a period of three years following implementation unless
something major triggered an earlier review. There would have to be a
complete review to change the figures.
The Vice-Chairman raised three points; the first was in relation to
development costs, the second was how holiday accommodation had
been defined, and the third was in relation to the charging zones in the
parishes of Watton and Carbrooke. In response to the first point, the
Planning Policy Team Leader explained how the development costs had
been reached. Referring to the second point, it was noted that the
definition of holiday accommodation were those proposals, subject to a
legal agreement, limiting occupation, and in response to the final point, in
relation to Carbrooke and Watton, Members were informed that it was
very difficult to get meaningful data from much smaller areas from the
hometrack system due to small sample sizes but with more evidence
coming forward there could be further refinement.
The Joint Deputy Planning Manager advised that dialogue had been had
with the development industry to inform the process.
Referring to the map on page 53 of the report which highlighted the fact
that most of the CIL contribution would be coming from certain areas in
Breckland, the Executive Member for Internal Services took this to imply
that these areas would be paying for development in others. The
Planning Policy Team Leader explained that CIL receipts could go into a
single pot so parishes could ask for such monies if specific infrastructure
needs had been identified even if CIL was not being levied on
development in their area. It was reminded that CIL broke the link
between where the development took place and where monies were
spent. The Executive Member for Assets & Strategic Development
reminded Members that the size of a development in rural areas would
not be more than 10/15 houses and therefore could attract a S106. The
Executive Member for Internal Services also asked what would happen if
a development was on the border of a non CIL area and a chargeable CIL
area. Members were informed that a line had to be drawn somewhere
and were reminded of the evidence gathered from the Hometrack system.
Members were further reminded of it being about fairness and movement
of monies. The Joint Deputy Planning Manager stated that CIL was
effectively a charge on land values.
The Chairman asked who paid for CIL. Members were informed that the
developer would be liable for the charge but if the developer fell into
liquidation, the liability would then fall to the landowner.
6

6

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

A question was asked about whether there would be a requirement for
extra staff. It was explained that under the CIL regime, Breckland Council
would be the charging authority and could recoup up to 5% of the CIL
revenues to cover the cost of administering CIL.
The Overview & Scrutiny Commission Chairman thought this was a very
difficult document for everyone to understand and he felt that it was going
to raise far more questions than anticipated. There were a number of
issues that bothered him. Firstly, Breckland had always been encouraged
to create a better environment for people to live and work but now, in his
opinion, the quality of new developments would be reduced. Good quality
materials cost more and the sensitivity analysis could have a serious
effect on visual characteristics. Features such as ground water, rain
water harvesting were going to be key for future designs. He also had
concerns about developers’ contingency levels being set at 2½% and the
right of appeal that could stifle developments. He knew that these points
could not be resolved forthwith but should be taken into perspective going
forward. The Executive Member for Assets & Strategic Development
agreed that many of the above points would be raised during the
consultation process. The Planning Manager said that the consultation
would be key and shared a number of the aforementioned concerns
particularly about where the boundaries should be drawn; however, on
occasion difficult decisions had to be made based on evidence. What
alternative did Breckland have if it did not move forward with this? There
had to be boundaries and unfortunately, some parishes would be
disenfranchised but if anyone could come up with a better solution from
the consultation he would be very interested.
Councillor Duigan thought that the whole CIL process was very
complicated and would be difficult to explain to the public.
Councillor Jolly asked at what point CIL would be applied. She also
asked about the review process. If there happened to be a change in
property values, the basis that Breckland had based the CIL would
become less defensible, particularly as a review would not be a quick
process and the consequence could be that the white land areas depicted
on the map could go up in value and the green areas could go down. The
Planning Policy Team Leader explained that the payment of CIL would be
triggered by a developer when given intent on a proposal. In response to
the second question, Members were informed that CIL could be reviewed
but that robust evidence would be needed to justify any amended rates in
the future.
In response to a further question in relation to liability on cross-border
developments, Members were informed that it would depend on where
the main proportion of development lied.
Other questions asked related to whether CIL was charged on acreage or
per square metre and if payment of CIL was expected within 60 days from
commencement of development. It was noted that CIL was charged on
the square metre and on net floor space; however, if a building was pulled
down and rebuilt CIL would only be charged on any extra square metres
gained above the original. In response to the latter, the Joint Deputy
Planning Manager advised that a draft payment policy had been put
7

7

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

forward but an incremental approach would perhaps be required for the
collection of CIL. The Planning Policy Team Leader advised that the draft
instalment policy may need to be revisited, depending on the outcome of
the consultation process which could include lower initial payment
thresholds. He reminded Members that there was a balance to be struck
in terms of the impact on developers versus the desirability of generating
funding into the CIL ’pot’ to fund infrastructure in the early years after
implementation.
Members were reminded that parish/town councils would be notified this
week of a drop-in session on 23 April 2013. All would be invited to attend.
Councillor Monument highlighted the following anomalies within the CIL
document:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Pages 59 and 61 – date query
Page 72 – section 4.11 – the sentence was incomplete and she
suggested that the following words be added: ……….the CIL to be
a fair policy.
Page 82, item 4 had subsection (b) twice.
Page 82, item 5 – any formula should have an equals sign.
Page 82 – suggestion to have a calculation as an example.
Page 89 bottom of page – the word practise should be practice.

Referring to the aforementioned drop-in session, Councillor Monument
did not think that the date provided gave the parishes enough time.
Members were informed that the Planning Policy Team would ensure that
all parishes would be contacted by the end of the week.
The Chairman asked if Members were happy that this document went out
to consultation. It was agreed that the document needed to be more user
friendly with worked up examples and a glossary needed to be added to
the front. It was further agreed that further Member briefings were
required.
The timelines were explained.
The Overview & Scrutiny Commission Chairman thought that the CIL
document required a very clear timetable and needed to be tidied up and
made more legible.
If the Council was expecting a meaningful
conversation then the document needed to be made much clearer with a
simple summary so that everyone understood the context of this
document.
The Chief Executive asked if all Members had been fully briefed, if not,
the briefing sessions needed to be held before the consultation began so
that Members could champion this for Breckland Council. He therefore
felt that the publication of a timetable would be useful.
Changes to the recommendation were put forward and agreed.
Options
(1)

To consider the PDCS, Viability Assessment and Infrastructure
funding paper and agree it to be released for consultation.
8

8

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

(2)

Not to approve the PDCS, Viability Assessment and Infrastructure
funding paper for consultation.

Reasons
It was recommended that Option 1 of the report be endorsed which would
allow consultation to be carried out on the Preliminary Draft Charging
Schedule. This option would allow the Council to further progress the
implementation of a CIL for the District.
It was important to progress CIL to enable the Council to have a
mechanism in place to secure funding from multiple development after 1st
April 2014 (the date on which S106 agreements would be called back).
However, once implemented the CIL Charging Schedule would need to
be kept under review, and it was recommended that a post adoption
timeframe of 3 years be used which would establish whether there were
any significant changes in the development market or other events which
could affect viability in the district.
Endorsing Option 2 of the report would have two impacts. The first could
be to effectively cease the preparation of CIL and rely on S106
agreements (with limitations post April 2014). However, in agreeing
option 2, the Council could delay the consultation on CIL in order to
commission further research or evidence to cover a greater range of
scenarios. Whilst this might be a reasonable option, it was considered
that any further evidence could still conclude that other forms of
development were not viable.
RESOLVED that subject to further Member briefing sessions being held
prior to the public consultation, and subject to the approval of the Chief
Executive and the Leader of the Council, the Preliminary Draft Charging
Schedule, Viability Assessment, draft Infrastructure List and Infrastructure
Funding Paper be agreed for public consultation.

29/13 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 10)
The arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday, 7 May 2013 at
9.30am in the Norfolk Room were noted.
30/13 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC (AGENDA ITEM 11)
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A to the Act.
31/13 PFI BENCHMARKING (AGENDA ITEM 12)
The PFI Monitoring & Strategic Sports Officer presented the report which
sought delegated authority to accept or reject the Benchmark figures and
to agree any changes to Service Specification and whether to go through
9

9

Cabinet
26 March 2013
Action By

the Market Test process as described in the report.
Members’ questions were invited.
The Chief Executive asked for a slight amendment to
recommendation to accord with the general provisions of delegation.

the

Options
See report.
Reasons
To allow the Council to meet its contractual obligations as described in
Schedule 18 Part 1 ‘Benchmarking Procedure’ of the Project Agreement.
To establish if refinancing the agreement would deliver financial benefits.
RESOLVED that authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive in
consultation with the Executive Member for Localism, Community &
Environmental Services for the decision to:
(1)

accept or reject the Benchmark figures;

(2)

agree any changes to Service Specification; and

(3)

whether to go through the Market Test process as described in the
report.

The meeting closed at 11.10 am

CHAIRMAN

10

10

Agenda Item 7
BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of Michael Wassell, Executive Member for Finance and Democratic
Services
To: Cabinet - 7 May 2013
(Author: Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance)
Subject: Capital Programme Outturn Report 2012-13
Purpose: This report sets out the outturn position of Breckland’s capital
programme for 2012/13. It shows the outturn on capital schemes in the 201213 capital programme, along with the resources used to fund the capital
programme.
Recommendation(s):
To recommend to Full Council that:
The final capital budget, outturn position and funding for 2012-13 and the
capital budget and funding for the revised 2013-14 capital programme as
detailed in Appendix A and B are approved.
1.

BACKGROUND
Capital investment plays a key role in helping the Council to achieve its long
term objectives. This report shows the out-turn position on capital schemes in
the 2012/13 Capital Programme along with the resources used to fund the
programme.
Capital Programme
The table below shows the final budget for the Capital Programme for
2012/13 following supplementary approvals compared to the original estimate
of £5,741,010.
Amendments to the programme (including some budget carry over to 2013/14)

have previously been reported to Cabinet and approved by Council plus there
have been new approvals during the year culminating in a revised estimate of
£3,770,474.
Original Budget
Final Budget
Value of
No. of
Value of
No. of
Portfolio
schemes schemes schemes schemes
Place and Governance
254,895
10*
456,758
8*
Commissioning
5,486,115
29 3,313,716
31
Total
5,741,010
39 3,770,474
39
* Match funding schemes shown as individual projects
The following table shows the out-turn position of £2,017,180, an under-spend
of £1,753,294 against the final budget.
Value of
Schemes
Outturn
Variance
£
£
£
Place and Governance
456,758
238,529
218,229
Commissioning
3,313,716
1,778,651
1,535,065
Total
3,770,474
2,017,180
1,753,294

11

Appendix A provides more detail on the budget, virements and actual spend.
Capital Programme Funding
The following table details the original and final funding figures for the capital
programme.
Final budget Final out-turn
Original budget
£
£
£
Funding type
Capital reserves
4,672,891
2,220,789
719,217
Revenue Funding
Specific grants
974,890
1,182,812
931,090
PFI prepayment
201,863
201,863
Reserve
Specific Reserves
93,229
165,010
165,010
Total
5,741,010
3,770,474
2,017,180
Appendix B provides more detail on how the 2012/13 capital programme is
proposed to be funded. The grant funding not applied will be carried forward
to 2013/14.
Request for variation to the 2013/14 Capital programme
A detailed summary showing the expected outturn is attached at Appendix A.
This also details the request to carry over £1,618,451 from 2012/13 to
2013/14. The balance of £134,843 is a saving against the 2012/13 capital
programme. Against each project is a narrative detailing why a request to
carry over funding is being made. This report requests that the final budget,
outturn position and funding for 2012/13 and the budget and funding for the
revised 2013/14 capital programme is approved.
Where funding has not already been released, schemes will require suitable
business cases to be prepared which will be evaluated at an Executive
Briefing or by the appropriate Committee.
It is recommended that the increase in value of the 2013/14 capital
programme of £1,618,451 is financed from available capital funding as
follows:
Capital reserves
£1,386,805
Specific Grants
£231,646
Specific Reserves
£0
Total
£1,618,451
Should any of the schemes highlighted in Appendix A not receive approval to
be included in the 2013/14 capital programme, the figures would be adjusted
downwards and should the final outturn be amended as a result of the final
accounts process, figures will also be adjusted.
Capital Receipts Out-turn
The original estimate for capital receipts was £865,000. However, the actual
receipts for 2012/13 were £142,000. Income from sales of land and property
are shown below:
£
Sale of 11a Roman Way
£72,000
Sandringham Way, Swaffham
£70,000
*Total
£142,000
*A further £104,000 is expected from Right to Buy Receipts.

12

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
The table below shows the CFR which is a Prudential Indicator and shows the
underlying need to borrow. Based on the expected position at the end of
2012/13, the CFR position is as per the table below. It shows that at the end
of 2014/15, unless additional receipts are generated there is a shortfall in
funding of £79,000. As indicated in the budget report to Council, a full review
of spend and expected receipts will take place in 2013/14 to ensure the
capital programme remains affordable.
Summary of Estimated Capital Resources
2012/13
Resources
(£’000s)
Opening CFR
(2,540)
Movement in year

2.

577

2013/14
(£’000s)
(1,963)

2014/15
(£’000s)
6,996

2015/16
(£’000s)
9,208

8,959

2,212

835

CFR as per prudential code

(1,963)

6,996

9,208

10,043

PFI Liability

(9,492)

(9,315)

(9,129)

(8,933)

Underlying Borrowing
requirement

(11,455)

(2,319)

79

1,110

OPTIONS
To recommend to Full Council that the final capital budget, outturn position
and funding for 2012/13 and the capital budget and funding for the revised
2013/14 Capital Programme as detailed in Appendix A and B are approved.
To make changes to Appendix A and B before recommending to Full Council
that the final capital budget, outturn position and funding for 2012/13 and the
capital budget and funding for the revised 2013/14 Capital Programme as
detailed in Appendix A and B are approved.

3.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION
The recommendation will ensure the capital programme for 2013/14 is
amended along with the necessary funding.

4.

EXPECTED BENEFITS
The final out-turn position represents the Council’s performance against
budget for the last year and therefore there is no expected benefit from this in
the future. By approving the revised 2013/14 Capital Programme as detailed
in Appendix A and B, this will ensure the Council can deliver its planned
capital projects.

5.

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Legal - None

5.2

Risks – I have completed the risk management questionnaire and I can
confirm that risk has been given careful consideration and that there are no
significant risks identified associated with the information in this report

5.3

Financial – The report is of a financial nature and the financial implications
are included within the report

13

5.4

Timescales – This report reports on 2012-13 performance and revised
budget for 2013-14.

5.5

Equality and Diversity - None

5.6

Stakeholders / Consultation – Budget holders have been consulted on their
out-turn against budgets and the reasons behind any major variances and
also for any requests relating to carry over requests.

5.7

Contracts – See Appendix A for contractual arrangements against individual
schemes

5.8

Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998 - None

5.9

Other - None

6.

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

Background papers:None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Margaret Bailey/Senior Accountant
Telephone Number: 01362 656218
Email: margaret.bailey@breckland.gov.uk
Director/Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name/Post: Mark Finch/Assistant Director Finance
Key decision
This is a key decision
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A – Capital programme outturn 2012/13 and budget carry over
Appendix B – Capital financing 2012/13

14

15

60,275
80,961

P

P

P

Transfer of Play areas - Swaffham

Transfer of Play Areas - Thetford

Transfer of Play areas - Attleborough

Environmental Health Review

C:\Documents and Settings\jbritton\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK1\Appendix A and BAppendix A

I

I

Planning and Building Control - additional Capita contribution

Customer Services Centre Telephony - Dereham

I

Planning and Building Control

I

I

Planning and Building Control – TLC & GEODSYS

Air Quality/Noise Monitoring

I

Affordable Housing

G

G

John Room House Conversion

G

P

Decent Homes Grants inc enhancement grants & loans/restore

S106 (Swanton Morley)

G

Disabled Facilities Grants/Re-able

S 106 (Watton)

G

G

St Mary the Less

20,165

50,000

5,000

66,781

325,960

20,000

108,823

6,119

500,000

27,360

250,000

839,711

-

110,000

P

10,000

P

Adoption of roads

Anchor Hotel demolition

2,000

P

Three legged bridge Thetford Riverside

-

22,000

P

Scarning Watermeadows bridge repairs

P

20,000

P

Transfer of Play Areas to Town Councils - Dereham

10,943

P

Elizabeth House

Skate Park Land

22,136

-

P

Street Lighting

P

84,479

P

Asset Management Plan

Transfer of Play Areas to Town Councils - Watton

-

Final 2012/13
budget

P

category(
see key)

Victory Park, Attleborough

Commissioning - Funding released

PROJECT

-

-

23,516

5,000

66,781

16,048

-

120,100

-

-

27,360

145,921

821,434

(7,821)

40,537

-

22,136

80,961

-

60,275

-

-

4,180.00

-

10,943

-

86,449

Actual spend

-

-

-

-

-

104,079

(104,079)

-

20,165

26,484

(26,484)

(20,165)

-

-

-

309,912

(309,912)

-

20,000

(20,000)

(11,277)

(6,119)
11,277

500,000

(500,000)

-

-

-

-

(7,821)

69,463

(69,463)

(18,277)

-

-

-

-

-

10,000

2,000

17,820

20,000

Unspent amount
requested to be
carried over

-

-

-

-

-

(10,000)

(2,000)

(17,820)

(20,000)

-

-

1,970

2012/13
(under)/overspend

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

250,000

-

150,000

673,000

-

-

121,700

-

-

174,270

-

15,000

21,000

-

-

-

789,057

230,000

18,207

Original budget
2013/14
Notes

20,165 Funding is committed but not spent. Request to carry over the balance of the budget to 2013/14.

26,484 Funding is committed but details are being finalised so request carry over of balance of budget to 2013/14

- Scheme complete

- Scheme complete

309,912 Request to carry over balance of budget into 2013/14. The project is behind schedule but there is a separate
Project Board who have been kept informed and are managing the issues. Spend will now take place in 2013/14.

20,000

(11,277) Overspend covered by additional contribution below. Request to carry over the balance of budget to 2013/14 as
final spend will not take place until 2013/14

750,000 Request to carry over budget to 13/14. £250K has been committed to the delivery of a permanent Gypsy and
traveller site along the A11 corridor. Potential commitment of £149K to Havebury Housing Association to assist
with the development of the Goods Shed at Thetford station and possible additional costs associated with Sweyne
Close.
- Spend was no longer eligible to be capitalised and has therefore been transferred to revenue

- Scheme complete

254,079 Request to carry over balance of budget to 2013/14. Spend is demand led and fully funded so no cost implications
but budget still required.

673,000 Funding of 100k received 2012-13 from Flagship in addition to DCLG grant

- This is an adjustment in respect of 2012-13 spend

69,463 Request to carry budget over to 2013/14. Project is delayed because a specification with English heritage is not y
agreed and further consultation on landscaping design is required.

121,700 Budget carried over to 13/14 as agreed by Cabinet 04/09/2012

- Scheme complete

- Scheme complete

174,270 Budget still required but project delayed. Cabinet 12/02/2013 agreed to carry funding over to 2013/14

25,000 Request to carry over budget to 2013/14 (increasing 2013/14 budget to 25k). This was for initial consultant
tender/contact mgt costs which will now take place in Q1 of 2013/14.
- Scheme complete

23,000 Request to carry over budget to 2013/14. This was for initial tender costs which will now take place in Q2 of
2013/14 with works completed by Q4 2013/14

17,820 Request to carry over balance of budget to 2013/14 to enable a tender exercise in Q1 of 2013/14 with works
completed by Q4 2013/14

20,000 Request to carry over budget to 2013/14. Project is now being led by Thetford Town Council. A decision on how
the project will proceed is expected in May. Until then, this budget is required in case land still needs to be release
from the PFI contract.

- Virement from Street lighting approved to fund final retention sum

789,057 Budget carried over to 13/14 as agreed by Cabinet 04/09/2012. Options for delivery are being explored.

230,000 2013-14 budget required to support Asset Management Plan. Condition surveys identified 2.3m spend required
over 10 yr period (230k per annum)

18,207 Budget carried over to 13/14 as agreed by Cabinet 04/09/2012

Proposed new
budget 2013/14

APPENDIX A

16

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

P

LAGAN Upgrade

Govt Connect Phase 3

Disaster Recovery

Telephony VOIP - Thetford

BDC & ICT NCC shared service infrastructure

ARP Waveney and Suffolk Coastal ICT

ARP Licences

Car Parks Re-surfacing

I

P

Integra e series and attachment manager

Riverside Regeneration

P

PFI 2012-13 additions

3,770,474

456,758

201,863

-

20,000

20,000

8,121

9,657

20,000

7,936

2,369

166,812

3,313,716

-

-

124,483

-

100,000

241,418

143,547

8,291

40,777

5,054

7,255

178

Final 2012/13
budget

C:\Documents and Settings\jbritton\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK1\Appendix A and BAppendix A

Key: P = Property (Land & Buildings), I = ICT & Organisational Change, G =
Capital Grants

Grand Total

Total Place and Governance

P

G

Match Funding Project - East Harling Recreation Facilities

Roof replacement joint use agreement

G

Match Funding Project - Swanton Morley Kitchen

G

G

Match Funding Project - North Elmham Village Green

G

G

Match Funding Project - Bawdeswell village hall ext

Match Funding Project - Shipdham Church

G

Match Funded Project - Eccles Garnier Hall

Match Funding Project - Westacre Theatre

G

Match Funded Projects - unallocated budget

Place and Governance

Total Commissioning

I

ICT Strategy Projects

Funding not yet released

I

category(
see key)

VM Ware

PROJECT

-

-

-

2,017,180

238,529

201,863

-

-

-

7,009

9,657

20,000

-

-

-

1,778,651

-

-

-

-

-

232,309

-

8,927

13,595

Actual spend

-

(100,000)

(1,753,294)

1,618,451

218,229

-

-

(218,229)

-

20,000

20,000

(20,000)
(20,000)

1,112

-

(1,112)

-

-

7,936

(7,936)

-

2,369

166,812

1,400,222

-

-

124,483

(2,369)

(166,812)

(1,535,065)

-

-

(124,483)

-

9,109

(9,109)

-

143,547

(143,547)

-

27,182

(27,182)

636

-

(5,054)

8,871,234

160,000

-

60,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

100,000

8,711,234

6,000,000

33,000

100,000

136,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,255

(7,255)

Original budget
2013/14

-

Unspent amount
requested to be
carried over

(178)

2012/13
(under)/overspend

- £20,000 was vired into unapproved strategy budget for future initiatives in conjunction with NCC.

Notes

10,489,685

378,229

- This is a year end adjustment and represents capital spend embedded in the PFI contract arrangements.

60,000

20,000 Request to carry this budget over to 2013/14 as project has not yet started

20,000 Request to carry this budget over to 2013/14 as project has not yet started

1,112 Balance of budget still required. Request to carry over the remaining budget to 2013/14

- Scheme complete

- Scheme complete

7,936 Balance of budget still required. Request to carry over the remaining budget

266,812 Funding available for future match funding applications. Request to carry balance of budget over to 2013/14 whic
will increase 2013/14 budget to £266,812
2,369 Balance of budget still required. Request to carry over the remaining budget to 2013/14

10,111,456

6,000,000 Budget carried over to 13/14 as agreed by Cabinet 04/09/2012. Discussions continue with NCC re delivery of the
project.

33,000

224,483 Request to carry over balance of budget to 2013/14 to support BDC/NCC shared service initiatives

136,000 Budget carried over to 2013/14 as agreed by Cabinet 12/02/2013. New profile was agreed of 136k per annum

- Budget no longer required - alternative solution approved by Joint Committee.

9,109 Request to carry budget over to 2013/14 as project is not yet complete. The budget is 100% funded by external
contributions.

143,547 Project will now be implemented between April 2013 and August 2013. Request to carry over balance of budget t
2013/14.

- There is a "cash back" deal for old switches to bring net spend within budget but income is revenue leaving an
overspend on capital

27,182 Request to carry over budget to 2013/14 for Customer Services work. Awaiting details - if the nature of the work is
not capital, funding will be returned to the ICT Strategy budget and charged to revenue (subject to approval)

- Spend was no longer eligible to be capitalised and has therefore been transferred to revenue

7,255 Request to carry over budget to 2013/14 for Customer Services work. Awaiting details - if the nature of the work is
not capital, funding will be returned to the ICT Strategy budget and charged to revenue (subject to approval)

Proposed new
budget 2013/14

17

C:\Documents and Settings\jbritton\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK1\Appendix A and BAppendix B

Commissioning - Funding Released
Asset Management Plan
Elizabeth House
Skate Park Land
Scarning Watermeadows bridge repairs
Three legged bridge Thetford Riverside
Adoption of roads
Transfer of Play areas - Swaffham
Transfer of Play areas - Attleborough
Transfer of Play Areas to Town Councils - Watton
Anchor Hotel demolition
St Mary the Less
Disabled Facilities Grants/Re-able
Decent Homes Grants inc enhancement grants & loans/restore
John Room House Conversion
Affordable Housing
Planning and Building Control – TLC & GEODSYS
Planning and Building Control
Planning and Building Control - additional Capita contribution
Environmental Health Review
S 106 (Watton)
S106 (Swanton Morley)
Air Quality/Noise Monitoring
Customer Services Centre Telephony - Dereham
VM Ware
LAGAN Upgrade
Govt Connect Phase 3
Disaster Recovery
Telephony VOIP - Thetford
BDC & ICT NCC shared service infrastructure
ARP Waveney and Suffolk Coastal ICT
ARP Licences
Funding not yet released
ICT Strategy Projects
Total Commissioning
Place and Governance
Match Funded Projects - unallocated budget
Match Funded Project - Eccles Garnier Hall
Match Funding Project - Bawdeswell village hall ext
Match Funding Project - North Elmham Village Green
Match Funding Project - Swanton Morley Kitchen
Match Funding Project - East Harling Recreation Facilities
Match Funding Project - Westacre Theatre
Match Funding Project - Shipdham Church
PFI 2012-13 additions
Total Place and Governance
Grand Total

PROJECT

86,449
10,943
4,180
60,275
80,961
22,136
40,537
(7,821)
821,434
145,921
27,360
100,100
20,000
16,048
66,781
5,000
23,516
13,595
8,927
232,309
1,778,651
20,000
9,657
7,009
201,863
238,529
2,017,180

124,483
3,313,716
166,812
2,369
7,936
20,000
9,657
8,121
20,000
20,000
201,863
456,758
3,770,474

Outturn

84,479
10,943
20,000
22,000
2,000
10,000
60,275
80,961
22,136
110,000
839,711
250,000
27,360
500,000
6,119
108,823
20,000
325,960
66,781
5,000
50,000
20,165
178
7,255
5,054
40,777
8,291
143,547
241,418
100,000

2012/13 Final
budget

36,666
719,217

20,000
9,657
7,009

682,551

13,595
8,927

23,516

16,048

100,100

27,360

30,442
17,565
22,136
40,537
(7,821)
288,574

4,180

86,449
10,943

Capital Reserve

Revenue
contributions

-

-

-

201,863
201,863
201,863

PFI prepayment
reserve

931,090

931,090

232,309

20,000

532,860
145,921

Grants

S106

71,781

71,781

66,781
5,000

Appendix B

93,229

93,229

29,833
63,396

Commuted sums

Agenda Item 8

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
Report of: Ian Sherwood, Executive Member for Performance & Business Development
To: Cabinet - 7 May 2013
Council - 23 May 2013

(Author:

Dominic Chessum – Joint Communications Team Leader)

Subject:

Breckland Digital Communications Strategy

Purpose:

To seek approval for the Breckland Digital Communications Strategy and
implement associated actions.

Recommendations:
a) To adopt the Breckland Digital Communications Strategy and
associated action plan
b) To approve the creation of a ‘digital newsroom’ for the Council as
detailed within this report
c) Rule out webcasting at this time due to annual costs.
d) To cease design, production and distribution of the Council magazine,
‘Voice’ with immediate effect and realise financial savings to help
reduce overall council spend and reallocated staff time associated with
magazine to development of digital communications.

1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

The advent of new technology and the rapid public adoption of social media has
resulted in a plethora of new communications channels opening up and becoming
mainstream in recent years.

1.2

This paradigm shift has meant communications teams in both the public and
private sectors have had to begin a process of fundamentally rethinking how they
operate. From the roles and skills needed within the team and the tools needed to

18

do the job to the methods used to ensure consistency of message and engage with
the public, all are having to be analysed, rethought and then gradually reworked
and changed.
1.3

This is a process of adopting new technology and skills, changing working
practices and instigating cultural and organisational change. It is likely to continue
in perpetuity.

2. DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY
2.1

It is for this reason that the Communications Team Leader has developed a Digital
Communications Strategy for the council. This should ensure that all the
opportunities presented by digital communications are explored by the council and
exploited where appropriate.

2.2

The guiding principles behind the development of the strategy are those contained
in the strategy produced by the Government Digital Service (GDS) which is
available at http://publications.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/digital/strategy/

2.3

The focus on “digital by default” is one which not only applies to transactional
services but also to communications and is one which the government is
increasingly keen for all authorities to apply.

2.4

Appendix 1 proposes the Digital Communications Strategy for the Council and
includes an action plan for implantation. Members will note that the final action is to
continue research and development as technology and social media opportunities
arise. It should be recognised that whilst this strategy sets an environment for
adopting digital and social media as a communications tool, the area is constantly
shifting and developing and further actions and improvements will need to be
brought forward on a case by case basis.

2.5

The Digital Communications Strategy proposes a number of actions in relation to
developing Breckland Council’s digital communication channels including:
x
x
x

Introduction of a digital newsroom
Consideration of webcasting facilities
Cessation of the Council’s magazine, ‘Voice’

2.6

Each element detailed below is able to be implemented independently, however,
should be considered as interlinked.

3.

DIGITAL NEWSROOM

3.1

While the council’s Digital Communications Strategy will involve several work
streams a key part of it will be a shift in the way we communicate with the public
from one where we proactively send out good news and react to bad news to a
more conversational style (see image below).

19

move to
Proactive / reactive model

Conversational Model

3.2

Key to achieving this move from the proactive / reactive model to the
conversational model is the creation of a ‘digital press office’. This is an essentially
an open, networked and social space which publishes digital information in an
accessible way and allows it to be easily retransmitted by others.

3.3

The newsroom no longer distinguishes between new and old media, public and
press. It works using digital links rather than copy content, thus ensuring the latest
version of all news is always available no matter when it was originally distributed.

3.4

As well as helping the council move more easily to a conversational style, the
‘digital press office’ also has the added advantage of making it much easier to get
relevant content to more hyper-local print and digital media, such as parish
magazines and the new Breckland View website, on a regular basis. It is
anticipated that it will go some way to increasing the council’s offline reach. In
essence, while the council would be moving towards getting more of its messages
out online, the digital newsroom may in fact increase replication of council
communications offline in local magazines, thus catering more effectively for the
digitally excluded on a more comprehensive, cheaper and regular basis.

3.5

However it is developed and hosted the digital newsroom will comply with the
council’s security needs given that no confidential information or information which
is not intended to be published will be placed on the domain.

3.6

Content will be linked back to the main council website where necessary via Really
Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds. This single copy, single point of issue system will
help ensure consistency of message.

3.7

The newsroom will also draw on and embed content such as video and audio
posted by the council on various social media sites. In this way hosting costs can
be kept to a minimum.

3.8

The cost development, implementation and ongoing costs for the digital newsroom
can be found by re-profiling aspects of the current communications budget.

4.

WEBCASTING

20

4.1

Breckland Council’s Digital Communications Strategy will commit the council to
exploring all communications opportunities presented by advances in technology.
One such opportunity is webcasting.

4.2

The potential is now there to broadcast the proceedings of Council and other
meetings live over the internet. This in turn has the potential to increase democratic
engagement and public understanding of the council and its services by enabling
more people to witness at first hand the council’s decision making processes.

4.3

Many councils across the country, including our partner council South Holland, now
use webcasting.

4.4

Webcasting has many advantages but both it and its primary objective of engaging
more members of the public in the democratic process should be placed in the
wider context of the council’s Digital Communications Strategy. This is a
substantial amount of money to spend on a service which is only likely to be
accessed by a small proportion of the population and there is an option not to
webcast meetings but to use the one off saving from Voice to help develop other
digital services, as detailed in the Digital Strategy. These services have the
potential to have far greater overall reach than webcasting alone and will fulfil the
same ambition of increasing democratic engagement and public understanding of
the council and the services it provides.

5.

COUNCIL MAGAZINE – ‘VOICE’

5.1

Breckland Council has produced its residents’ magazine ‘Voice’ for a number of
years.

5.2

The purpose of the magazine is to provide a regular and direct form of
communication with residents to ensure they remain informed as to the operation
of the council and the services it provides.

5.3

Where as previously a printed periodical was arguably the only way of ensuring
regular and direct effective communication with residents, digital communication
platforms mean that this is no longer the case.

5.4

The magazine is expensive to design, print and deliver with the original budget for
the financial year 2012/13 being £84,000. The budget set for 2013/ 14 is less at
£42,000 due to a reduction in the number of issues. It also takes a significant
amount of officer resource during the weeks of production. There is also a
significant time delay between collation of material, production and distribution of
the magazine.

5.5

Digital communication channels offer and new and instantaneous way in which to
communicate directly with residents. Combined with the digital newsroom which
has the potential to increase the council’s reach in print media it is now feasible to
consider the cessation of the council magazine, take the allocated budget as
savings and reallocate the officer time previously used to create voice to develop
other digital channels.

21

5.6

The council magazine came bottom of the priorities placed on a number of council
products and services during the recent Could we? Should we? public consultation.

6.

OPTIONS

6.1

As this report details a range of interlinked initiatives, there are a number of options
available to be considered and each initiative can be considered in isolation.

6.2

Digital Strategy
Option 1: To adopt the Breckland Digital Communications Strategy and
associated action plan
Option 2: Do nothing

6.3

Digital Newsroom
Option 1: Approve the creation of a ‘digital newsroom’ for the Council.
Option 2: Do nothing

6.4

Webcasting
Option 1: To rule out webcasting at this time due to annual costs but agree
money set aside for initial first year of webcasting be used as a one off
investment into developing other digital services at the council
Option 2: To rule out webcasting at this time due to annual costs and take
money set aside for initial first year of webcasting as savings
Option 3: To agree the principle of webcasting and ask officers to procure
the best value for money service. Agree to use the savings from Voice to
finance the first year of webcasting and created a budget within the
Democratic Services directorate to finance future years.
Option 4: Do nothing

6.5

Voice
Option 1: Cease design, production and distribution of the Council
magazine, ‘Voice’ with immediate effect and realise the savings budgeted
for and reallocated staff time associated with magazine to development of
digital communications.
Option 2: Reduce the number of issues of Voice per year
Option 3: Retain current levels of production of the Voice per year

22

7.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

7.1

Adoption of the digital strategy will ensure the council explores and, where deemed
appropriate, exploits all the opportunities which emerging digital technologies
present. Each recommendation detailed within this report supports the shift
towards increased used of digital technology for communication with the aim of
increasing speed and quality of communication whilst minimising costs.

8.

EXPECTED BENEFITS

8.1

Digital Strategy
x

8.2

Digital Newsroom
x
x
x

8.3

The creation of a digital newsroom will be a central pillar in enabling the
council’s Digital Strategy.
It will enable the Council to adapt to cope with modern methods of
communication and make use of all the communications channels open to it.
It has the potential to increase the reach of the council’s communications.

Webcasting
x

8.4

Greater public understanding of the council, its operations and services, and
greater public engagement in the democratic process.

While webcasting does have the potential to increase democratic
engagement and public understanding of the council and the services it
provides, it is a considerable expense. Using the money set aside for the
first year of this project to invest in other digital services will enable the
communications team to achieve the same ends but through a more
comprehensive range of projects which will have far greater public reach
than webcasting alone. It will also mean no budget allocation will need to be
made for webcasting in future years.

Voice
x
x
x

Organisational savings
Freeing up of staff time
Shift towards more immediate form of direct communication with residents.

9.

IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Staffing

9.1.1 Changes to working practices and the cessation of the council magazine will create
enough staff resource to ensure the implementation of the digital communications
strategy for the benefit of the council.
9.2

Legal

23

9.2.1 All legal matters such as data protection will be considered during the design and
any procurement processes linked to the initiatives detailed within this report.
9.3

Risks

9.3.1 The risk implications of this report have been considered and the following risks
have been identified:
9.3.2 Digital Strategy
x
x
x

Due care will be given to the risks inherent within each individual project should the
strategy be approved
The risk of enabling the public to leave comments of the strategy is mitigated
against by their comments being moderated prior to publication.
As this is a public site hosted externally no sensitive data will be stored upon it

9.3.3 Digital Newsroom
x
x
x
x

Release of information – Same mitigation as with any form of publication
undertaken by Communications team
Technical down time will be detailed within the contract
Increasing costs in future – Dealt with by contract and simple product using open
source software so possibility of transferring provider should costs rise
substantially
Public access to internet - County Council broadband campaign should do much
to increase access

9.3.4 Webcasting
x
x
x

Due care will be given to the risks inherent in webcasting should it be approved.
This will be addressed through training and appropriate procedures.
The risks contained within the digital strategy will be considered on a project by
project basis.
Not undertaking poses a risk in that the council is not making use of a
communication channel available to it, however, this will be mitigated by the use of
other channels.

9.3.5 Voice
x
x

9.4

Due care will be taken to ensure we continue to promote events being run by the
council effectively.
The digital newsroom will go some way to ensuring those who primary form of
council information was the magazine remain informed.
Financial

9.4.1 Digital Strategy

24

x

The full financial implications of each additional project will be considered as they are
investigated. Due consideration will always be given to budgetary constraints and value for
money.

9.4.2 Digital Newsroom
x

The cost of newsroom, including creation, hosting and training of staff is as yet not
known but it is not expected to be in excess of £3,000 per annum. This can be
found by reprofiling the existing communications budget and reducing spend on
hired services.

9.4.3 Webcasting
x

Adopting webcasting would place an ongoing financial commitment upon the
council

x

The communications team has asked for three quotes from three separate
companies. While one company did not provide a quote the two quotes received
ranged from £11,900 to £27,540 per annum. It is likely the cheaper quote would
adequately cater for our needs and represent best value for money.

x

Savings made through keeping the production and distribution costs of Voice
magazine to a minimum over the past year are able to finance the purchase and
operation of a webcasting system for the first year, however, this purchase is likely
to place an ongoing annual financial commitment upon the council which a budget
would have to be created for.

9.4.4 Voice
x
x

9.5

The cessation of the council magazine will mean the whole budget of £86,000 has
the potential to be taken as savings.
Staffing resource currently used for the magazine can be redeployed to ensure
maximum benefit to the council from the implementation of the digital
communications strategy.
Contracts

9.5.1 If the recommendations of this report are approved, there is the potential that one
contract required to develop the online provision and training required for the digital
newsroom. The costs of this are details in the financial section of this report.
9.6

Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998:

9.6.1 The implications of this report have been considered and in the opinion of the
report writer there are none.
10.

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED
All Wards are potentially affected by the outcome of this report.

25

___________________________________________________________________
Background papers:___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Dominic Chessum, Joint Communications Team Leader
07827 843 349
dominic.chessum@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:

Digital Communications Strategy
Digital Communications Strategy Action Plan

26

Breckland
Digital
Communication
Strategy

March 2013

27

Vision
The advent of new technology and the rapid public adoption of social media
has resulted in a plethora of new digital communications
opportunities opening up and becoming mainstream in recent years.
This paradigm shift has meant organisations in both the public and private
sectors have had to begin a process of fundamentally re-thinking how they
communicate. From the roles and skills needed within communications teams
and the tools needed to do the job to the methods used to ensure effective
public understanding and engagement, all are having to be analysed, rethought and then gradually reworked and changed.
This is not just a process of adopting new technology and skills, it is a process
of cultural and organisational change which is likely to be ongoing for some
years, if indeed, given the exponential rate at which technology is developing,
it ever stops.
The key drivers for this adoption are to enhance the experience of residents in
their interactions with the council and to realise the efficiencies and cost
savings which digital technology offers the organisation.
For the purposes of this document digital means any form of technology, from
computer systems and programmes to social media, which has the potential
to be utilised by residents, the council or both groups in order to
communicate.
In setting up the Government Digital Service (GDS) within the Cabinet Office
the Government has sent a clear signal that it sees the migration of people to
digital as a key target. It has called this process of migration “digital by
default” and describes it as follows in its Government Digital Strategy
“By digital by default, we mean digital services that are so straightforward and
convenient that all those who can use them will choose to do so whilst those
who can’t are not excluded.”
Encapsulated in this sentence is much of what we aim to achieve in terms of
communications at Breckland Council. We aim to make the digital
communications opportunities we create of such a standard that they are
adopted by choice by the majority of officers, members and the public. We
will, however, always ensure that members of the public whose first choice is
not digital are not disadvantaged in any way.
In summary, the vision for Breckland Council’s Digital Communications
Strategy is,
“To make digital communications the format of choice, enhancing the
experience of residents, and realising efficiencies for all.”

28

Aims
The aim of the Digital Strategy is to ensure the council does not miss any of
the opportunities presented by advances in digital communications.
It aims to ensure the maximum benefit for both residents and the organisation
as follows:
Residents
x
x
x
x

Make the council’s services more publicly accessible
Further improve transparency
Enhance the customer experience
Enable more regular and proactive public interaction with members
and officers
x Make interacting with the council easier

Organisation
x
x
x
x

Develop more efficient and streamlined communications practices
Enhance the officer and member working experience
Streamline flow of information
Enhance learning and knowledge gathering to enable further
improvements
x Achieve potential efficiencies and costs savings
These aims will be achieved by a series of projects which are detailed in the
next chapter.

29

Projects
Please note that an action plan detailing how these project will be
implemented can be found at the end of this document (Appendix A).

Social Media Development
Social media is fundamentally changing the way and speed people
communicate and share information. As a council, social media offers us a
whole new range of platforms and channels through which we can
communicate with the public.
Channels such as Twitter and Facebook have moved rapidly from being niche
to mainstream and with this has come opportunities but also obligations.
Though there will always be some whose preference is for traditional
channels of communication, and for whom, as explained in the vision section,
we will continue to cater for using traditional methods, there are now many
whose main way of receiving, collating and digesting information is through
social media. It is their communication method of preference and there is an
expectation from them that the council caters for this.
With this in mind, the way the council conducts its communications has
moved rapidly from one where social media was viewed as an optional extra
to one where it is an integral part of our communications strategy. In order to
achieve this we are changing the model by which we communicate to the
public. As these two diagrams explain, we are moving from a model where we
simply put messages out to the public to one of much greater interaction.

Traditional model of communications
- sending out key messages with no interaction or feedback.

30

The new method of communications
– entering into conversations about the messages we put out.

This new conversational model is far more effective in enabling us to
disseminate our information, correct misinformation and have constant
feedback on how the public perceive the council is performing. It works best
when social media is used in conjunction with the digital newsroom detailed
below.
Responsibility the corporate social media channels lies with the
council's Communications Team. The team reviews its social media output,
the way it utilises social media and the channels it uses on a regular basis.
As the council's use of social media has developed, specific projects run by
various teams within the council have also set up their own social media
pages. These are operated by the individual teams in consultation with, and
under guidance from, the Communications Team from whom they must first
seek approval. This strategy aims to further enhance this model and develop
the number of services who are using social media to interact directly with
residents. In order the mitigate against any risks associated with this model, a
set of guidelines will be developed which will also serve to protect both the
officers and the council in this circumstance (see next section).

Social Media guidelines
Councils across the country find themselves at various points on the journey
towards giving staff full access to digital communication channels and
enabling them to use social media in the course of their work. As this happens
there remains a responsibility to ensure adequate protections are in place for
both the council and staff.
Digital communication channels have the potential to create a blurring of
the lines between personal and work life. Safeguards are therefore needed for
two key reasons. Firstly, they protect both the staff and the organisation
because if staff are made aware of the issue and the grey areas, the risks are
reduced. Secondly, when staff feel empowered, enabled, confident and

31

secure in their use of social media, this is when the full potential of the use of
these digital channels can be harnessed.
But the above is only half the equation. Digital channels offer new ways in
which the public can interact with the council and its officers. For the full
potential of this to be utilised, just as staff must feel empowered, enabled,
confident and secure in their use of digital communication channels so must
the public.
The public must also understand the terms on which the council is engaging
with them through social media. What they can expect from the council and
the behaviour the council expects from them.
A single set of publicly accessible guidelines will be created which
encompasses all the above. All staff using social media for council purposes
will be expected to sign up to the guideline and will receive training as
required.

Digital Newsroom
The shift in the communications model the council is using is detailed in the
social media section of this document. In essence it is a move from a way of
communicating where we proactively send out good news and react to bad
news, to a more conversational style.
Key to achieving this conversational model is the creation of an online ‘digital
press office’. This is essentially an open, networked and social space which
publishes digital information in an accessible way and allows it to be easily retransmitted by others.
The newsroom no longer distinguishes between new and old media, public
and press. It works using digital links rather than copy content, thus ensuring
the latest version of all news is always available no matter when it was
originally distributed.
As well as helping the council move more easily to a conversational style, the
‘digital press office’ also has the added advantage of making it much easier to
get relevant content to more hyperlocal media, such as parish magazines, on
a regular basis. As a result of this it is anticipated that it will go some way to
increasing the council’s offline reach. In essence, while the council would be
moving towards getting more of its messages out online, the digital newsroom
may in fact increase replication of council communications offline in local
magazines, thus catering more effectively for the digitally excluded on a more
comprehensive, cheaper and regular basis and fulfilling the criteria set out in
the Digital by Default statement in the vision section of this document.

32

The digital newsroom itself can be created in a number of ways but
essentially, where needed, content will be linked back to the main council
website via Really Simple Syndication (RSS) feeds. This single copy, single
point of issue system will help ensure consistency of message.
The newsroom will also draw on and embed content such as video and audio
posted by the council on various social media sites. In this way hosting costs
can be kept to a minimum.
Details of how the Digital Newsroom will be implemented can be found in the
action plan (Appendix A).

Email
Email is now a long ago integrated part of working practice for most people
and, although it has its drawbacks, it can still be a powerful communications
tool when used correctly.
Breckland Council already successfully uses email as a method of answering
queries from the public from its customer contact centre and the addition of a
digital newsroom would also offer the media, the public, members and officers
an opportunity to sign up to have news release drop directly into their inbox
among its other syndication methods.
While externally the way the council uses email is comprehensive and
effective, internally policies and procedures require revision.
1. A new standard email signature and out of office reply template needs

to be developed and adopted by all.
2. A new policy on the distribution of ‘all staff’ emails needs to be

developed and adopted.
3. Training on the effective and efficient use of email needs to be given to

staff.
The Communications Team will undertake the first two aspects of this work
and will liaise with Human Resources Team regarding the third. The team will
also looking at various options for enhancing the look of some important email
communications using several different products.

Websites
Breckland Council’s website was redeveloped in 2010 and went live in
January 2011.

33

Since then responsibility for the website had been transferred from
Communications Service to Customer Services, a decision based on the
premise that although the external website is a powerful method of
communication it, in essence, a customer service tool. Use of the website is
consistent and growing.
Currently the council makes use of a bought-in product called Gov Delivery to
alert customers who sign up when changes are made to specific topic areas
on the website. With other methods of delivering a similar service available
the annual subscription to this product will be reviewed.
While the main website will remain a repository of information about the
council and its services and the front page of this site a key communications
tool, in the future the council will increasingly look to create mini-sites for
specific purposes.
These will generally be for a single issue or purpose and they will generally
be built using Wordpress or similar free tools at little or no expense to the
council other than officer time. They will invariably link from and to the main
site in some way. Aspects of these single use and quick to establish sites can
be integrated into the digital newsroom and create a good platform for good
viral social media coverage. Their effectiveness makes single issue basis
makes then quick, efficient and effective and as only public information is
displayed on them there is little risk.

Intranets
The intranet at Breckland was developed some years ago and is now
somewhat antiquated and the information on it out of date in many places.
While fit for purpose at the time of creation thought on the purpose and use of
intranets in recent years has moved on somewhat.
The intranet at Breckland is essentially an internal website which contains
information relevant to council officers. There is interactivity in places but it is
minimal and poorly used.
The council also operates The Place as a secure area for senior managers
and members of the Key Officer Group (KOGs) to post information and
interact with each other.
Creating a successor to the current intranet is far from being a priority for the
council but in time thought must be given as to the requirements of the council
as it moves forward. ICT will need to lead this project with input from
Communications.
Webcasting

34

The potential is now there to broadcast the proceedings of Council and other
meetings live over the internet. This in turn has the potential to increase
democratic engagement and public understanding of the council and its
services by enabling more people to witness at first hand the council’s
decision making processes.
Many councils across the country, including our partner council South Holland
District Council, now regularly use webcasting. While it has many advantages,
both it and its primary objective of engaging more members of the public in
the democratic process should be placed in the wider context of the council’s
Digital Communications Strategy.
Webcasting is a substantial amount of money to spend on a service which is
only likely to be accessed by a small proportion of the population. The
development of other digital services has the potential to have far greater
overall reach than webcasting alone and will fulfil the same ambition of
increasing democratic engagement and public understanding of the council
and the services it provides.
In the current economic climate it is not prudent therefore to procure a
webcasting system, however, the usefulness of this system should not be
discounted and this decision will be kept under review.
Publications
Breckland Council has produced its residents’ magazine ‘Voice’ for a number
of years with the purpose of providing a regular and direct form of
communication with residents to ensure they remain informed as to the
operation of the council and the services it provides.
Whereas previously a printed periodical was arguably the only way of
ensuring regular and direct effective communication with residents, digital
communication platforms mean that this is no longer the case.
The magazine is relatively expensive to design, print and deliver with the
original budget for the financial year 2012/13 being £84,000. It also takes a
significant amount of officer resource during the weeks of production.
The time delay between collation of material, production and distribution of the
magazine is also an issue.
Digital communication channels offer and new and instantaneous way in
which to communicate directly with residents. Combined with the digital
newsroom which has the potential to increase the council’s reach in print
media it is now feasible to consider the cessation of the council magazine,
take the allocated budget as savings and reallocate the officer time previously
used to create voice to develop other digital channels.

Digital development and research

35

As detailed at the beginning of this strategy, technology is developing at an
exponential rate and no one knows what may be around the corner. This
strategy aims to endorse continuous development and improvement within
the way we communicate internally and with our residents, therefore it should
be recognised that the recommended actions within this strategy will only be
the starting point.
A key role for the Communications Team will be to continue to monitor and
research new and innovative developments and opportunities within
technology and communications that may have positive benefits to the council
and its resident. The Communications Team will continue to identify
opportunities as they arise and bring these forward on a case by case basis
for consideration.

36

37

Social Media
Development

Social Media
Guidelines

Digital
Newsroom

Email

1

2

3

4

Area of work

Ensure email use
is as effective as
possible

Develop single set
of social media
guidelines for use
by both officers
and public
Creation of a digital
newsroom for use
by the
communications
team

Communications
/ HR

Communications

Communications
/ HR

Communications

Service Area

12 March 2013

Regularly review
effectiveness of
corporate social
media channels.

Output

Date last updated:

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Account
able
Officer
Dominic
Chessum

Page 1 of 2

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Pam Sayle

Lead
Officer

Seek approval for
the creation of
digital newsroom
Procure contractor
to develop digital
newsroom
Implement digital
newsroom
Create new
universal email
signature and out
of office
Create universal
email policy
Training on
effective use of
email

Officer Training

Review existing
corporate social
media channels
Assess if new
corporate social
media channels
need to be adopted
Create guidelines

Action required

TBA

April 2013

March 2013

Sept 2013

June 2013

May 2013

Completed

Ongoing – recurs every 6
months.

July 2013

August 2013

Ongoing – recurs every 6
months.

Status

July 2013

Deadline

Digital Communications Strategy Action Plan (Appendix A)

Breckland Council

R
A
G

38

Website

Intranets

Webcasting

Council
magazine

Research
and
Development

5

7

8

9

9

Area of work

New opportunities
brought forward on
a case by case
basis

Decide on future of
council magazine

Develop new
solution to
organisation needs
currently catered
for by intranet
Decide on whether
to implement
webcasting

Ensure website
meets organisation
needs and is up to
date

Output

Communications
/ other services
where relevant

Communications

Communications
/ Member
services

ICT /
Communications

Customer
Services

Service Area

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Kevin
Rump

Account
able
Officer
Dylan
Powles

Page 2 of 2

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Dominic
Chessum

Kevin
Rump

Dylan
Powles

Lead
Officer

Decision on
whether to
implement
webcasting
Decision on future
of council
magazine
Further reports for
decisions where
required.

Ensure website
meets ongoing
needs
Review
procurement of
Gov Delivery
????

Action required

Ongoing

May 2013

May 2013

n/a

Ongoing – dependent on
decisions of council

Ongoing – will be
reviewed annually

???

Report gone to CMT

March 2013

???

Ongoing

Status

Ongoing

Deadline

R
A
G

PROFORMA B

BRECKLAND COUNCIL PROFORMA B
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)
FROM: Mandy Ashton (Senior Accountant – Revenues & Projects)
THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED REPORT
REPORT:
REPORT DATE:

Revenue

Digital Communications Strategy
26th March 2013

£ Year 1
2013/14

£ Year 2
2014/15

£ Year 3
2015/16

£ Year 4
2016/17

£ Year 5
2017/18

Digital Newsroom –
Set up
Digital Newsroom –
Further development
(maximum)
Cessation of Voice

3,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

3,000
(44,210)

3,000
(45,360)

3,000
(46,720)

3,000
(48,170)

3,000
(49,660)

Total Revenue

(38,210)

(42,360)

(43,720)

(45,170)

(46,660)

Funding required:
Total capital cost
Revenue saving

Considered by:
Exec
Cabinet

£nil
See above

Council

Date:
01/04/13
07/05/13
26/05/13

Financial Services Comments
This report seeks to approve the Digital Communications Strategy which includes action
points detailed in the table above.
Efficiencies for the cessation of Voice form part of the “Could we should we” consultation.
If this proposed saving is used to fund other areas there will be less scope for the full
savings to be realised in the “Could we should we” project.
Financial Risk
Should the proposal to cease the production of voice be rejected and the other options
approved an increase to the budget from 2013/14 and future years will need to be
approved. This will increase the Council’s efficiency target in the future.
If committee approve web casting the saving will be reduced further.

This PB is valid for 3 months from PB
date
15/04/2013

If this PB is not longer required please
advise Finance
Page 1 of 1

39

If there are changes to the original
report it may invalidate this document,
it must be reviewed by Finance.
C:\Documents and
Settings\dchessum\Desktop\Dom's
Working Folder\Reports\Digital
Communications Strategy\Digital
Communications Strategy - second

Agenda Item 9
%5(&./$1'&281&,/
)25(67+($7+',675,&7&281&,/
($67&$0%5,'*(6+,5(',675,&7&281&,/
67('081'6%85<%2528*+&281&,/

$WD0HHWLQJRIWKH

$1*/,$5(9(18(6$1'%(1(),763$571(56+,3-2,17&200,77((

+HOGRQ7KXUVGD\0DUFKDWSPLQWKH
/HYHO0HHWLQJ5RRP%UHFNODQG+RXVH6W1LFKRODV6WUHHW7KHWIRUG,3
%7

35(6(17
0U3'&ODXVVHQ
0U5(YHULWW &KDLUPDQ 
0U30RDNHV
0U'$5D\



0U:+&6PLWK
0U15RPDQ 6XEVWLWXWH0HPEHU 
0U-:DWHUV 6XEVWLWXWH0HPEHU 


,Q$WWHQGDQFH
/XF\%XUW
0DUN)LQFK
-RKQ+LOO
6KDURQ-RQHV
5RG8UTXKDUW
5REHUW:DONHU
/L]:DWWV
+HOHQ0F$OHHU












)UDXG 9LVLWV7HDP0DQDJHU $53 
$VVLVWDQW'LUHFWRURI)LQDQFH %'& 
&KLHI([HFXWLYH (&'& 
+HDGRI6KDUHG6HUYLFH $53 
2SHUDWLRQV0DQDJHU $53 
$VVLVWDQW'LUHFWRURI&RPPLVVLRQLQJ %'& 
'LUHFWRU 6(%& )+'& 
6HQLRU&RPPLWWHH2IILFHU %'& 





$FWLRQ%\

 0,187(6 $*(1'$,7(0 








,WZDVQRWHGWKDW783(VKRXOGEHLQFDSLWDOOHWWHUVZLWKRQO\RQHµH¶
LQWKHSHQXOWLPDWHSDUDJUDSKRISDJHIRXU

6XEMHFW WR WKDW DPHQGPHQW WKH 0LQXWHV RI WKHPHHWLQJ KHOGRQ 
-DQXDU\ZHUHFRQILUPHGDVDFRUUHFWUHFRUGDQGVLJQHGE\WKH
&KDLUPDQ

 $32/2*,(6 $*(1'$,7(0 


$SRORJLHV IRU DEVHQFH ZHUH UHFHLYHG IURP 0U $PEURVH6PLWK 0U
(GZDUGVDQG0U0LOODU

0U5RPDQDQG0U:DWHUVZHUHSUHVHQWDV6XEVWLWXWH0HPEHUV

 )5$8' 67$1',1*,7(0  $*(1'$,7(0 


7KH )UDXG  9LVLWV 7HDP 0DQDJHU ZDV SUHVHQW IRU WKLV LWHP DQG
SUHVHQWHG WKH UHSRUW ZKLFK XSGDWHG 0HPEHUV RQ UHFHQW ZRUN IRU
HDFKDXWKRULW\DQGFRPSDUHGWKHVDQFWLRQVGXULQJWKHSDVWTXDUWHU
WRWKHVDPHTXDUWHUWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU



40











$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\



7KHUH ZHUH QR VLJQLILFDQW FKDQJHV  7KH VOLJKW UHGXFWLRQ IRU (DVW
&DPEV'LVWULFW&RXQFLOKDGEHHQFDXVHGE\VRPHRQJRLQJODERXU
LQWHQVLYHFDVHV

0U 6PLWK DVNHG ZKDW WKH DFURQ\P +80,17 VWRRG IRU DQG ZDV
DGYLVHG WKDW LW ZDV KXPDQ LQWHOOLJHQFH IHHGEDFN IURP DQ
LQIRUPDQW 

7KH&KDLUPDQWKDQNHGWKHRIILFHUIRUDJRRGUHSRUW7KHLWHPZDV
QRWHG

 3(5)250$1&(5(3257 67$1',1*,7(0  $*(1'$,7(0 

D
2SHUDWLRQDO3HUIRUPDQFH



7KH )HEUXDU\ SHUIRUPDQFH UHSRUW ZDV WDEOHG E\ WKH 2SHUDWLRQV
0DQDJHU

0HPEHUV¶DWWHQWLRQZDVGUDZQWRWKH:HOIDUH5HIRUPLQIRUPDWLRQ
HYHQWV QRWHG XQGHU NH\ DFKLHYHPHQWV  7KHUH KDG DOVR EHHQ
WUDLQLQJVHVVLRQVDQGOHWWHUVKDGEHHQVHQWWRDOODIIHFWHGSHRSOH
ZDUQLQJWKHPDERXWWKHFKDQJHV,WKDGEHHQDEXV\PRQWK

7KH&KDLUPDQDVNHGZKHWKHUSHRSOHVHHPHGWREHDZDUHRIWKH
IRUWKFRPLQJFKDQJHVDQGZDVDGYLVHGWKDWLWYDULHG$ORWRIZRUN
KDG EHHQ GRQH ZLWK WKH +RXVLQJ $VVRFLDWLRQV WR UHDFK WKHLU
WHQDQWV  %HQHILW OHWWHUV ZRXOG EH VHQW RXW LQ WKH QH[W ZHHN DQG
WKH QXPEHU RI SKRQH FDOOV UHFHLYHG IROORZLQJ WKDW ZRXOG EH DQ
LQGLFDWLRQRIKRZZHOOSHRSOHXQGHUVWRRGWKHFKDQJHV7KHUHKDG
DOUHDG\ EHHQ D ORW RI TXHULHV IURP OHWWLQJ DJHQWV UHJDUGLQJ WKH
WHFKQLFDO FKDQJHV  7KH HIIHFW RQ FXVWRPHUV ZRXOG RQO\ EH IXOO\
XQGHUVWRRGRQFHWKHFKDQJHVKDGEHHQLPSOHPHQWHG

7KH +HDG RI 6KDUHG 6HUYLFH QRWHG WKDW WKH\ KDG FRQWDFWHG
SHRSOHE\OHWWHUZDUQLQJWKHPRIWKHFKDQJHVEXWWKDWWKH\ZHUH
QRWDEOHWRDGYLVHWKHPZKDWWKHLUQHZEHQHILWVZRXOGEH/HWWHUV
UHJDUGLQJWKHFKDQJHVWR+RXVLQJ%HQHILWVKDGQRWEHHQVHQW\HW
LQDQDWWHPSWWRVSUHDGWKHORDG

7KH2SHUDWLRQV0DQDJHUZHQWRQWRDGYLVH0HPEHUVWKDWWUDLQLQJ
VHVVLRQVKDGEHHQKHOGIRUVWDIIIRU%XVLQHVV5DWHV5HWHQWLRQRQ
QHJRWLDWLRQWHFKQLTXHVHWFWRWU\WRHQVXUHPD[LPXP\LHOG

+H WKHQ PRYHG RQ WR WKH SHUIRUPDQFH VSUHDGVKHHWV ZKLFK KDG
EHHQVHWRXWLQDQHZVW\OH7KHUHGLQGLFDWRUIRU%UHFNODQGZDV
DWWULEXWHG WR LVVXHV ZLWK WKH ,&7 LQIUDVWUXFWXUH DQG WKH IDFW WKDW
WKUHHPHPEHUVRIVWDIIKDGPRYHGRQ

7KH )RUHVW +HDWK DPEHU IRU %HQHILWV ZDV GXH WR WKH VDPH
UHDVRQV  7KH &RXQFLO 7D[ DPEHU ZDV GXH WR WKH GHEW VKLIW
FDXVHG E\ SHRSOH PRYLQJ LQWR SURSHUWLHV DW WKH VWDUW RI WKH \HDU
DQGKDYLQJWRSD\WKUHHPRQWKVZRUWKRI&RXQFLO7D[RQWKHQHZ

41









$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\




E






SURSHUW\ KDYLQJ RIWHQ DOUHDG\ SDLG IRU WKH IXOO \HDU RQ WKHLU
SUHYLRXVSURSHUW\

7KH(DVW&DPEVUHGIRU1DWLRQDO1RQ'RPHVWLF5DWHVFROOHFWLRQ
ZDVDOVRFDXVHGE\DGHEWVKLIWDQGHYHU\HIIRUWZDVEHLQJPDGH
WRKLWWKHHQGRI\HDUWDUJHW

6RPH 0HPEHUV TXHULHG WKH IRUPDW DQG VWUXJJOHG WR XQGHUVWDQG
KRZWKHWDUJHWVIRUHDFKTXDUWHUGLYLGHGE\IRXUGLGQRWHTXDWHWR
WKH WDUJHW IRU WKH \HDU  7KH 2SHUDWLRQV 0DQDJHU H[SODLQHG WKDW
WKHWDUJHWGLIIHUHGWKURXJKRXWWKH\HDUGXHWRFKDQJHVLQZRUNORDG
DQGWKHZD\LQ ZKLFKVRPHLWHPVRIZRUN VXFKDVWKH\HDUHQG
PDVV XSORDG  ZHUH GHDOW ZLWK  ,W ZDV FRQILUPHG WKDW WKH ILJXUHV
ZHUHPRYLQJLQWKHULJKWGLUHFWLRQ

7KH &KLHI ([HFXWLYH (&'&  QRWHG WKDW RQH RI WKH
UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV LQ WKH 6WUDWHJLF 5HYLHZ ZDV WR LPSURYH WKH
SUHVHQWDWLRQRILQIRUPDWLRQ

7KH &KDLUPDQ DVNHG ZKHWKHU LW ZRXOG EH ZRUWK WKH &RPPLWWHH
UHFHLYLQJ FRPSDUDWLYH LQIRUPDWLRQ RQ WKH QXPEHU RI FRPSODLQWV
HDFKDXWKRULW\UHFHLYHG

7KH 'LUHFWRU 6(%&  )+'&  VXJJHVWHG WKDW WKH 2SHUDWLRQDO
,PSURYHPHQW%RDUGVKRXOGORRNLQWRWKDW

0U &ODXVVHQ DVNHG ZKDW LPSDFW KDG EHHQ QRWLFHG QRZ WKDW
%HQHILWV ZHUH SDLG GLUHFWO\ WR FODLPDQWV DQG WKH +HDG RI 6KDUHG
6HUYLFH VDLG LW KDG KDG D VLJQLILFDQW HIIHFW RQ 6RFLDO /DQGORUGV
ZLWK FROOHFWLRQ UDWHV UHGXFHG WR DERXW  IURP   6KH
VXVSHFWHG WKDW &RXQFLO 7D[ FROOHFWLRQ ZRXOG EH DIIHFWHG WRR
$QRWKHU LVVXH ZDV WKH FKDQJH WR %HQHILWV UHJDUGLQJ WKH QXPEHU
RIEHGURRPVLQDSURSHUW\$PHHWLQJKDGEHHQKHOGZLWK6RFLDO
/DQGORUGV DQG WKH VPDOOHU RQHV ZHUH UHDOO\ FRQFHUQHG WKDW WKH\
PLJKW KDYH WR PDNH GLIILFXOW GHFLVLRQV LQ IXWXUH DERXW ZKR WKH\
FRXOGKRXVH

7KH +HDG RI 6KDUHG 6HUYLFH KDG EURXJKW WKRVH FRQFHUQV WR WKH
DWWHQWLRQRIWKH':3GXULQJDYLVLWWKH\KDGPDGHWRWKH$53WKH
SUHYLRXVZHHN

7KHUHSRUWZDVQRWHG

)LQDQFLDO3HUIRUPDQFH

7KH$VVLVWDQW'LUHFWRURI)LQDQFH %'& QRWHGWKDWWKH\ZHUHVWLOO
IRUHFDVWLQJ DQ XQGHUVSHQG DOWKRXJK WKDW ZRXOG EH SDUWO\ RIIVHW
E\UHGXFHGLQFRPHDQGSRVWDJHEXGJHWLQFUHDVHV%RWKRIWKRVH
DUHDVKDGEHHQUHIOHFWHGLQWKHQH[W\HDU¶VEXGJHW

7KHUHSRUWZDVQRWHG



42








$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\


 %8'*(7'(7$,/6 $*(1'$,7(0 








7KH&KDLUPDQKDGUHTXHVWHGWKLVLWHPRQWKHDJHQGDDVWKHUHZHUH
VRPHLWHPVZKLFKUHTXLUHGFODULILFDWLRQ

7KHVXEVFULSWLRQVIRU%'&ZHUH EXWIRU)+'&RQO\ KH
DVNHG ZK\ WKHUH ZDV VXFK D ELJ GLIIHUHQFH DQG WKH $VVLVWDQW
'LUHFWRU RI )LQDQFH %'&  H[SODLQHG WKDW HDFK 3DUWQHU $XWKRULW\
IRUPXODWHG WKHLU EXGJHW EDVHG RQ WKH QXPEHU RI VWDII WKH\ ZHUH
HPSOR\LQJ  $OO GLUHFW FRVWV IRUPHG SDUW RI WKH $53 FRUH EXGJHW
WKURXJK %UHFNODQG &RXQFLO¶V ERRNV  7KDW DOVR H[SODLQHG WKH
GLIIHUHQFHLQ+5FRVWV

7KHDPRXQWIRUVWDWLRQHU\VHHPHGYHU\ODUJHFRQVLGHULQJWKDWLWGLG
QRWLQFOXGHSRVWDJHFRVWV7KH2SHUDWLRQV0DQDJHUH[SODLQHGWKDW
WKH\ ZHUH OHJDOO\ UHTXLUHG WR VHQG RXW ORWV RI OHWWHUV LQFOXGLQJ
UHPLQGHUV ILQDO QRWLFHV DQG VXPPRQVHV 7KH YROXPHV ZHUH LQ
H[FHVVRIRQHPLOOLRQSDJHVDQQXDOO\LQFOXGLQJH[SODQDWRU\OHDIOHWV
WKDWKDGWREHVHQWZLWKOHWWHUV

(%LOOLQJ ZDV XVHG EXW WKH WDNHXS OHYHOV ZHUH QRW JRRG  7KH\
ZHUH FXUUHQWO\ LQ WRXFK ZLWK D VRIWZDUH VXSSOLHU WR LPSURYH WKDW
VHUYLFH ZKLFK ZRXOG DOVR KDYH D NQRFN RQ HIIHFW RI UHGXFLQJ WKH
QXPEHURITXHULHVFRPLQJWKURXJKRWKHUFKDQQHOV

+H ZHQW RQ WR H[SODLQ WKH EUHDNGRZQ RI WKH VXEVFULSWLRQV SDLG
ZKLFKZHUHLQWKUHHNH\DUHDV1DWLRQDO$QWL)UDXG1HWZRUNZKLFK
VDYHGPRQH\E\JLYLQJDFFHVVWRLQIRUPDWLRQWKH,QVWLWXWHRI5DWLQJ
9DOXDWLRQDSURIHVVLRQDOERG\DQG&,3)$±WKHUDWHVIRUZKLFK
KDGEHHQGULYHQGRZQE\WKHSRZHURIKDYLQJVL[DXWKRULWLHV

7KH'LUHFWRU 6(%& )+'& QRWHGWKDWDVSDUWRIWKH2SHUDWLRQDO
%RDUG¶VSHUIRUPDQFHPDQDJHPHQWWKH\ ZRXOGKDYHEHQFKPDUNLQJ
GDWD RQ DGPLQ FRVWV DW RWKHU DXWKRULWLHV ZKLFK ZRXOG EH UHDOO\
XVHIXOLQGHWHUPLQLQJZKHWKHUWKH3DUWQHUVKLSZDVJHWWLQJYDOXHIRU
PRQH\

7KHLWHPZDVQRWHG

 $'',7,21$/*29(510(17)81',1* $*(1'$,7(0
 


7KH 2SHUDWLRQV 0DQDJHU SUHVHQWHG WKH UHSRUW ZKLFK DGYLVHG
0HPEHUV RI WKH DPRXQW RI DGGLWLRQDO IXQGLQJ UHFHLYHG WKURXJK
YDULRXVIXQGLQJVWUHDPVIURPWKH':3DQGWKH&/*WRLPSOHPHQW
FKDQJHV WR WKH EHQHILWV UHJLPH  7KH UHSRUW GHWDLOHG ZKHUH WKH
IXQGLQJZDVWREHVSHQW

7KH IXQGLQJ ZRXOG FRYHU WKH FRVW IRU VRIWZDUH XSJUDGHV FKDQJHV
WR WKH ZHEVLWH DQG OHDIOHWV DQG DGGLWLRQDO VWDIILQJ WR GHDO ZLWK WKH
LQFUHDVLQJFDVHORDG7KHGHWDLOVZHUHVHWRXWDW$SSHQGL[$WRWKH
UHSRUW

43









$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\




,W ZDV DOVR SURSRVHG LQ WKH UHSRUW WKDW SRZHU EH GHOHJDWHG WR WKH
62IILFHUVDQGWKH2SHUDWLRQDO,PSURYHPHQW%RDUGWRGHDOZLWK
IXWXUH VSHQGLQJ RI DGGLWLRQDO IXQGLQJ WR VWUHDPOLQH WKH SURFHVV
'HWDLOVZRXOGEHUHSRUWHGWRWKH-RLQW&RPPLWWHHTXDUWHUO\

,QUHVSRQVHWRDTXHVWLRQ0U0RDNHVZDVDGYLVHGWKDWRYHURI
FODLPVZHUHGHDOWZLWKRYHUWKHSKRQH

0U 6PLWK SRLQWHG RXW VRPH GLVFUHSDQFLHV LQ WKH ILJXUHV LQ WKH
FXUUHQWUHSRUWDQGWKDWDW$JHQGD,WHP,WZDVH[SODLQHGWKDWWKH
UHSRUWVKDGEHHQZULWWHQDWGLIIHUHQWWLPHVDQGWKHPRUHXSWRGDWH
ILJXUHVZHUHLQWKHWHOHSKRQ\UHSRUW

0U6PLWKDOVRDVNHGZKHWKHUWKHQHZVWDIIZRXOGEHH[SHULHQFHGRU
ZRXOG UHTXLUH WUDLQLQJ DQG ZDV DGYLVHG WKDWLW ZDV WKH LQWHQWLRQ WR
PRYH H[SHULHQFHG VWDII IURP ZLWKLQ WKH RUJDQLVDWLRQ DQG EDFNILOO
WKHLUSRVWVDQGWUDLQLQWHUQDOO\

)LQDOO\0U6PLWKVDLGLWZDVWRWKHFUHGLWRIWKHILQDQFHGHSDUWPHQW
WKDW WKH\ GUHZ DWWHQWLRQ WR WKH ULVN RI WKH 3DUWQHUVKLS EHFRPLQJ
GHSHQGHQW RQ WKH DGGLWLRQDO IXQGLQJ  7KH &KDLUPDQ DJUHHG DQG
ZRQGHUHGZKDWWKHOLDELOLWLHVZRXOGEHLIWKHIXQGLQJUDQRXW

7KH 2SHUDWLRQV 0DQDJHU DGYLVHG WKDW WKH QHZ SRVWV ZRXOG DOO EH
IL[HGWHUPFRQWUDFWVZLWKQROLDELOLWLHV

0U5D\QRWHGDFKDQJHLQWKHWHUPLQRORJ\IURP/RFDO&RXQFLO7D[
6XSSRUW6FKHPHWR/RFDOLVHG&RXQFLO7D[5HGXFWLRQ6FKHPHDQG
DVNHGZKLFKZDVFRUUHFW

7KH+HDGRI6KDUHG6HUYLFHH[SODLQHGWKDWDOWKRXJKWKH':3KDG
RULJLQDOO\ FDOOHG LW WKH /RFDO &RXQFLO 7D[ 6XSSRUW 6FKHPH &HQWUDO
*RYHUQPHQWKDGFKDQJHGLWWRWKH/RFDOLVHG&RXQFLO7D[5HGXFWLRQ
6FKHPH

5(62/9('WKDW


WKHUHSRUWZDVQRWHG

WKH SD\PHQWV QHFHVVDU\ IURP WKH 3DUWQHU $XWKRULWLHV
WR%UHFNODQG&RXQFLOEHDSSURYHG

WKHDSSRLQWPHQWRIWKHIXOO\IXQGHGWHPSRUDU\VWDIIE\
%UHFNODQG&RXQFLOEHDSSURYHG

WKH GHOHJDWLRQ WR WKH 3DUWQHU 6 RIILFHUV DQG WKH
2SHUDWLRQDO ,PSURYHPHQW %RDUG WR FRQVLGHU DQG
DJUHH DQ\ IXWXUH VSHQGLQJ LQ  UHVSHFW RI DGGLWLRQDO
IXQGLQJEHDSSURYHG

WKHDGGLWLRQDOIXQGLQJEHUHSRUWHGZLWKLQWKHTXDUWHUO\
ILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHUHSRUWLQIXWXUHDQG

DQ\ VXUSOXV RI IXQGLQJ EH UHWDLQHG E\ WKH 3DUWQHU
$XWKRULWLHVLQWKHDJUHHGJDLQFRVWVKDUHUDWLRQ



44

$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\


 7(/(3+21(5(&25',1*32/,&< $*(1'$,7(0 








7KH 2SHUDWLRQV 0DQDJHU SUHVHQWHG WKH UHSRUW ZKLFK VRXJKW
DSSURYDO IRU IXUWKHU LQWHJUDWLRQ RI WKH %HQHILW &ODLP DXWRPDWLRQ
SURFHVV

7R SURYLGH D FRPSOHWH VHUYLFH LW ZDV QHFHVVDU\ WR KDYH WKH
WHOHSKRQ\WRUHFRUGDFODLPDQW¶VGHFODUDWLRQ7KDWUHFRUGLQJZRXOG
EH DGPLVVLEOH LQ D FRXUW RI ODZ  0HPEHUVZHUH DVNHG WR DSSURYH
WKH 3ROLF\ DQG GHOHJDWH DXWKRULW\ WR WKH 2SHUDWLRQDO ,PSURYHPHQW
%RDUG WR EULQJ LQ DQ\ QHFHVVDU\ DPHQGPHQWV DQG FKDQJHV ZKHQ
WKHEHVWVRIWZDUHRSWLRQKDGEHHQFKRVHQ

0U 5D\ SRLQWHG RXW VRPH W\SRJUDSKLFDOJUDPPDWLFDO HUURUV ZKLFK
ZRXOGEHFRUUHFWHG

6XEMHFWWRWKRVHDPHQGPHQWVLWZDV5(62/9('WKDW


WKHUHSRUWZDVQRWHG

WKH 7HOHSKRQH FODLPV UHFRUGLQJ SROLF\ EH DSSURYHG
DQG

WKHGHOHJDWLRQWRWKH2SHUDWLRQDO,PSURYHPHQW%RDUG
IRU DQ\ VXEVHTXHQW FKDQJHV LQ OLQH ZLWK RWKHU $53
3ROLFLHVEHDSSURYHG

 :(/)$5(5()250 67$1',1*,7(0 $*(1'$,7(0 


7KH +HDG RI 6KDUHG 6HUYLFH SURYLGHG D YHUEDO XSGDWH  6KH KDG
DWWHQGHG VHYHUDO PHHWLQJV ZLWK WKH ':3 DERXW WKH IUDPHZRUN IRU
SDUWQHUVKLSZRUNLQJZLWK/RFDO$XWKRULWLHV0RUHLQIRUPDWLRQZRXOG
EHDYDLODEOHLQ2FWREHU7KH\ZRXOGEHORRNLQJDW/RFDO$XWKRULWLHV
DQG 3DUWQHUV ZRUNLQJ ZLWK YXOQHUDEOH SHRSOH WKRVH ZKR GLG QRW
KDYH (QJOLVK DV D ILUVW ODQJXDJH WKRVH ZLWK OLWHUDF\ SUREOHPV
WKRVH ZLWK GUXJDOFRKRO SUREOHPV HWF  6XFK SHRSOH ZRXOG QRW EH
VHQWHOHFWURQLFQRWLILFDWLRQV

7KH8QLYHUVDO&UHGLWSLORWGLGQRWWDNHDFFRXQWRIWKH/RFDO&RXQFLO
7D[ 6XSSRUW VFKHPH DQG WKH +HDG RI 6KDUHG 6HUYLFH KDG KHDUG
VRPH UXPRXUV DERXW EULQJLQJ LW LQWR 8QLYHUVDO &UHGLW  7KHUH ZDV
DOVR WDON RI UHPRYLQJ /RFDO &RXQFLO 7D[ 6XSSRUW LQ WZR WR WKUHH
\HDUV

7KHUHZHUHVWLOOORWVRIGHWDLOVWRUHVROYH

 $1<27+(5%86,1(66 $*(1'$,7(0 


,WZDVVXJJHVWHGWKDWWKHSUHPHHWLQJVIRU0HPEHUVRQO\VKRXOGEH
UHGXFHGWRPLQXWHVDQGWKDWWKHPHHWLQJVFRXOGWKHQFRPPHQFH
DWSP

5(62/9(' WKDW IXWXUH PHHWLQJV ZRXOG FRPPHQFH DW
SPIROORZLQJDPLQXWHSUHPHHWLQJIRU0HPEHUVRQO\

45













$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\


DWZKLFKDOLJKWOXQFKZRXOGEHDYDLODEOH 

 1(;70((7,1* $*(1'$,7(0 








7KH DUUDQJHPHQWV IRU WKH $QQXDO 0HHWLQJ WR EH KHOG RQ  -XQH
 FRPPHQFLQJ DW SP  LQ WKH /HYHO  0HHWLQJ 5RRP
%UHFNODQG+RXVH7KHWIRUGZHUHQRWHG

 (;&/86,212)35(66$1'38%/,& $*(1'$,7(0 


5(62/9(' WKDW XQGHU 6HFWLRQ  $  RI WKH /RFDO
*RYHUQPHQW$FWWKHSUHVVDQGSXEOLFEHH[FOXGHGIURP
WKH PHHWLQJ IRU WKH IROORZLQJ LWHPV RI EXVLQHVV RQ WKH
JURXQGV WKDW WKH\ LQYROYH WKH GLVFORVXUH RI H[HPSW
LQIRUPDWLRQDVGHILQHGLQSDUDJUDSKRI3DUWRI6FKHGXOH
$WRWKH$FW

 675$7(*,&5(9,(: $*(1'$,7(0 


7KH2SHUDWLRQV0DQDJHUDQG+HDGRI6KDUHG6HUYLFHOHIWWKHURRP
ZKLOVWWKLVLWHPZDVGLVFXVVHG

7KH&KLHI([HFXWLYHSUHVHQWHGWKHUHSRUWZKLFKZDVDMRLQWHIIRUWRI
WKH2SHUDWLRQDO,PSURYHPHQW%RDUG 2,% 7KHDSSHQGLFHVWRWKH
UHSRUW ZRXOG EH XSGDWHG DW HDFK PHHWLQJ  7KH UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV
LGHQWLILHGZKHUHGHFLVLRQVZHUHQHHGHG

7KH'LUHFWRU 6(%& )+'& GUHZDWWHQWLRQWRWKHWLPHWDEOHRQWKH
ILQDOSDJH

)LQDORXWOLQHEXVLQHVVFDVHVZRXOGEHSUHVHQWHGWRWKH6HSWHPEHU
PHHWLQJZLWKRSWLRQV

0U 5D\ WKDQNHG WKH 2,% IRU PDNLQJ D JRRG VWDUW RQ LPSOHPHQWLQJ
WKHUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVDQGVHWWLQJDJRRGWLPHVFDOH

'HWDLOVRIWKHSURSRVDOVZHUHGLVFXVVHG

5(62/9('WKDW


WKH GUDIW ,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ 3ODQ DW $SSHQGL[  RI WKH
UHSRUW EH DJUHHG DQG WKH SURJUHVV RXWOLQHG DW
$SSHQGL[EHQRWHG

WKH GUDIW -RE 3URILOH DQG 3HUVRQ 6SHFLILFDWLRQ IRU WKH
QHZ SRVW RI +HDG RI 6HUYLFH WRJHWKHU ZLWK D GUDIW
PDQDJHPHQW VWUXFWXUH DQG RXWOLQH UHFUXLWPHQW DQG
VHOHFWLRQWLPHWDEOH $SSHQGL[ EHHQGRUVHG

RIILFHUVEHDXWKRULVHGWRILQDOLVHWKHQHZPDQDJHPHQW
VWUXFWXUH IRU FRQVXOWDWLRQ DQG UHFUXLW DV DSSURSULDWH
DQG

RIILFHUV EH LQVWUXFWHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH
,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ3ODQWREULQJIRUZDUGSURSRVDOVWRWKH


46











$QJOLD5HYHQXHVDQG%HQHILWV3DUWQHUVKLS-RLQW&RPPLWWHH
0DUFK

$FWLRQ%\


-XQHPHHWLQJVSHFLILFDOO\

L
LL
LLL
LY

XSGDWHRQWKHRXWOLQHEXVLQHVVFDVHIRUWKHWZR
SUHIHUUHGJRYHUQDQFHPRGHOV
XSGDWH RQ PDQDJHPHQW UHVWUXFWXULQJ IROORZLQJ
FRQVXOWDWLRQ
VFRSH RI ZRUNV IRU VKDUHG VXSSRUW VHUYLFHV
DQG
LPSURYHPHQWV
WR
$53¶V
3HUIRUPDQFH
0DQDJHPHQW )UDPHZRUN LQFOXGLQJ WKH
LQWURGXFWLRQRIDEDODQFHGVFRUHFDUG



7KHPHHWLQJFORVHGDWSP



&+$,50$1

47



Minute Item 9a



















3HUIRUPDQFH5HSRUW




$VDW)HEUXDU\









9

48

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS $53 



3HUIRUPDQFH5HSRUW

&217(176



)25(:25'  



.(<$&+,(9(0(176 



352-(&76  



&203/$,176 



3(5)250$1&(0($685(0(17 

$533HUI5HS



49 10

3DJHRI

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS $53 




3HUIRUPDQFH5HSRUW

 )RUHZRUG

%UHFNODQG&RXQFLO(DVW&DPEULGJHVKLUH'LVWULFW&RXQFLO)RUHVW+HDWK'LVWULFW
&RXQFLO 6W(GPXQGVEXU\'LVWULFW&RXQFLOZRUNWRJHWKHUWRSURYLGHWKHLU5HYHQXHV
DQG%HQHILWVVHUYLFHVWKURXJKWKH$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS $53 7KLV
SDUWQHUVKLSZDVWKHILUVWRILWVNLQGEHLQJLQRSHUDWLRQVLQFH

:HKDYHDQDJUHHPHQWLQSULQFLSOHZLWK:DYHQH\DQG6XIIRON&RDVWDOFRXQFLOVWRMRLQ
WKHSDUWQHUVKLSLQ$SULO

%HFDXVHRIWKLVKLVWRU\WKH3DUWQHUVKLSLVERWKQDWLRQDOO\ LQWHUQDWLRQDOO\UHQRZQHG 
KDVZRQPDQ\DFFRODGHVVXFKDV%HDFRQ6WDWXV/RFDO*RYHUQPHQWHIILFLHQF\ 
LQQRYDWLRQDZDUGV:HKDYHDOVRKRVWHGDQXPEHURIVXFFHVVIXORSHQGD\VZKHUH
RWKHURUJDQLVDWLRQVFDQFRPH VHHWKH$53H[SHULHQFH

7KURXJKWKHSDUWQHUVKLSWKHDXWKRULWLHVSURYLGHFRQVLVWHQWO\KLJKSHUIRUPDQFHZLWK
KLJKFXVWRPHUIRFXVIRUWKRVHZKRXVHRXUVHUYLFHDQGIRUHYHU\FXUUHQWDQGIXWXUH
SDUWQHUZLWKZKRPZHZRUN5LJRURXVSURFHVVHVSURGXFHWKHKLJKHVWVWDQGDUGVRI
SHUIRUPDQFHDQGUHJXODUPRQLWRULQJRIUHVXOWVHQVXUHVWKDWFRQWLQXRXVLPSURYHPHQWV
DUHDFKLHYHG

$53¶VSULPDU\IRFXVLVVHUYLFHGHOLYHU\ZLWKLQWKH5HYHQXHV %HQHILWVDUHQDEXW
EHFDXVHRIWKHSDUWQHUVKLS¶VXQLTXHSRVLWLRQLWLVDOVRLQGHPDQGIRUFRQVXOWDQF\
WUDLQLQJ UHVLOLHQFHVHUYLFHVWRRWKHU/RFDO$XWKRULWLHVSULYDWHFRPSDQLHV H[WHUQDO
DJHQFLHV

7KH3DUWQHUVKLSVHHNVWRJURZE\SURYLGLQJKLJKVWDQGDUGVRIVHUYLFHDFURVVD
EURDGHUSDUWQHUVKLSEDVHZKLOVWLPSURYLQJWKHLQFRPHRIWKH3DUWQHUVKLSDQGWKXV
UHGXFLQJWKHRYHUDOOFRVWRIVHUYLFHSURYLVLRQWRWKH3DUWQHU$XWKRULWLHV

,QDWUDGLQJDUPZDVFUHDWHGWRHQDEOHDIXOOUDQJHRIVHUYLFHVRIIHUHGDVSDUWRI
DSURFXUHPHQWSURFHVVDQGDVDUHVXOWRIWKHKLJKGHPDQGIRURXUVHUYLFHV7KLV
FRPSDQ\$537/WGRIIHUVDUDQJHRIVHUYLFHVWR/RFDO*RYHUQPHQWDQGLWVZHEVLWH
FDQEHDFFHVVHGE\WKHIROORZLQJ85/OLQNKWWSZZZDUSWUDGLQJFRXN




4XHVWLRQVUHODWLQJWRWKLVGRFXPHQWVKRXOGEHGLUHFWHGWR


5RG8UTXKDUW



6KDURQ-RQHV

2SHUDWLRQV0DQDJHU 


+HDGRI6KDUHG6HUYLFHV

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS

7HO 


7HO
 URGXUTXKDUW#DQJOLDUHYHQXHVJRYXNRUVKDURQMRQHV#DQJOLDUHYHQXHVJRYXN











$533HUI5HS



11 50

3DJHRI

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS $53 




3HUIRUPDQFH5HSRUW

 .H\$FKLHYHPHQWV
7KLVPRQWK¶VNH\DFKLHYHPHQWVLQFOXGH

%HQHILWQHZV


• 7UDLQLQJ2IILFHUVKDYHHQVXUHGWKDW&XVWRPHU6HUYLFHWHDPVLQDOOKRVW
DXWKRULWLHVDQGDOO$53VWDIIDUHZHOOHTXLSSHGWRJLYHFOHDULQIRUPDWLRQWR
FXVWRPHUVDERXWWKH$SULOFKDQJHVIRU:HOIDUH5HIRUPV/RFDO&RXQFLO7D[
6FKHPHDQG&RXQFLO7D[5HGXFWLRQ6FKHPH
• :HOIDUH5HIRUPLQIRUPDWLRQHYHQWVZHUHKHOGLQHDFKRIWKH$53DUHDV
'HUHKDP(O\:HVW6XIIRON+RXVH0LOGHQKDOODQG7KHWIRUG EHFDXVHWKH
FKDQJHVLQEHQHILWVZHUHVRZLGHUDQJLQJWKLV\HDU2YHUVWDIIIURPKRVW
DXWKRULWLHVDQGRWKHUDJHQFLHVZKRKDYHWKHVDPHFXVWRPHUVEXWSHUIRUP
GLIIHULQJIXQFWLRQVDWWHQGHGWRGLVFXVVZD\VRIMRLQWO\ZRUNLQJDQGKHOSLQJ
FXVWRPHUVDVPXFKDVSRVVLEOH'LVFXVVLRQLQFOXGHG
• 6RFLDO)XQGFKDQJHV
• 5RRPUHVWULFWLRQV
• /RFDO&RXQFLO7D[5HGXFWLRQ
• )XWXUHFKDQJHVWR'LVDELOLW\/LYLQJ$OORZDQFH ':3 WR3HUVRQDO
,QGHSHQGHQFH3D\PHQWV 3,3  GHOLYHUHGE\':3 
• &RXQFLOWD[FKDQJHVZHUHDOVRFRYHUHGLQWKH:HOIDUH5HIRUPPHHWLQJVDQG
WKLVZDVWKHPDLQUHDVRQIRUKDYLQJPHHWLQJVLQDOOWKHKRVWDXWKRULW\DUHDVWR
FRYHUWKHYDU\LQJ&RXQFLO7D[VFKHPHV)HHGEDFNRQWKHDOOWKHPHHWLQJV
ZDVH[WUHPHO\SRVLWLYHDQGLGHDVH[SUHVVHGDWWKHPHHWLQJVZDVXVHGWR
HQKDQFHWKHOHWWHUV
• 2YHUVWDNHKROGHUVDQGFXVWRPHUVHUYLFHVWDIIDWWHQGHG:HOIDUH5HIRUP
DQG&RXQFLO7D[5HGXFWLRQLQ':3GLGSUHVHQWDWLRQV:HOIDUH5LJKWVDW
7KHWIRUG%HHQZHOOUHFHLYHG
• /HWWHUVKDYHEHHQVHQWWRDOOFXVWRPHUV NQRZQDWWKHWLPHWREHDIIHFWHGE\
WKHFKDQJHV LQIRUPLQJWKHPRIKRZWKHLU+RXVLQJEHQHILWZLOOEHDIIHFWHGE\
WKHFKDQJHVDQG&RXQFLO7D[FXVWRPHUVZKRZLOOWKHQKDYHRIWKHLU
OLDELOLW\WRSD\
• $XWRPDWLFWUDQVIHURIQHZHFODLPVLQWRWKH$FDGHP\V\VWHPLVQRZXSDQG
UXQQLQJ)RUWKHWLPHEHLQJWKLVZLOODSSO\WRVHOIVHUYLFH FKHFNER[HG IRUPV
RQO\EXWZLOOEHUROOHGRXWWRWHOHSKRQHFODLPVLQGXHFRXUVH
• 5HDVRQVIRUQRWVRJRRGSHUIRUPDQFH±,&7RURQWKHRWKHUVKHHW"


5HYHQXH&ROOHFWLRQ

• /HWWHUVKDYHEHHQVHQWWRFXVWRPHUVZKRPD\EHDIIHFWHGE\WKHGLVFRXQWDQG
H[HPSWLRQFKDQJHV
• 7KHWUDLQLQJRIILFHUVKDYHHQVXUHGWKDW$53VWDIIDQG&XVWRPHU6HUYLFHWHDPV
DUHZHOOHTXLSSHGWRJLYHFOHDULQIRUPDWLRQWRFXVWRPHUVDERXWWKHFKDQJHVWR
GLVFRXQWVDQGH[HPSWLRQV
• 5HYHQXHVVWDIIIURP$53LQFOXGLQJ:DYHQH\DQG6XIIRON&RDVWDOKDYHKDG
UHIUHVKHUWUDLQLQJRQ&RPSOHWLRQQRWLFHVWRHQVXUHLQFRPHLVPD[LPLVHG
• $QQXDOELOOLQJLVFRPSOHWHIRU(&WKDWEHLQJWKHILUVWFRXQFLOWRVHWLW¶VWD[
EDVH
• 5HOHYDQWVWDIIKDYHEHHQWUDLQHGRQ%XVLQHVVUDWHUHWHQWLRQ


3URMHFWV

• 7KH3ULQWLQJ 0DLOLQJ7HQGHUVDUHEHLQJFKHFNHGIRUFRPSOLDQFH
$533HUI5HS



51 12

3DJHRI

$QJOLD5HYHQXHV3DUWQHUVKLS $53 

3HUIRUPDQFH5HSRUW
• %XVLQHVVUDWHELOOVDUHQRZWREHSURGXFHGWKURXJK3URSULQWZKLFKZLOOPDNH
IXWXUHDPHQGPHQWVHDVLHUDQGFKHDSHU

 &RPSODLQWV
&RPSODLQWVDUHUHFRUGHGVHSDUDWHO\E\HDFKSDUWQHUDXWKRULW\DVSDUWRIWKHLU
FRPSODLQWV FRPSOLPHQWVSROLF\¶V


 3HUIRUPDQFH0HDVXUHPHQW

7KHSULPDU\PRQWKO\PHDVXUHVRISHUIRUPDQFHVKRZQLQWKLVUHSRUWDUHWKH
1DWLRQDO /RFDO3HUIRUPDQFH,QGLFDWRUV$QDQQXDOWDUJHWLVVHWZLWKLQWKH
3DUWQHUVKLS¶VDQQXDO6HUYLFH3ODQWKDWLVWREHDFKLHYHGE\WKHHQGRI0DUFKHDFK
\HDU$PRQWKO\SURILOHGWDUJHWLVHVWLPDWHGWRJLYHDPHDQLQJIXOPRQWKO\PHDVXUH
RISURJUHVVWRZDUGVWKHVHWDUJHWV




&RORXUFRGLQJ

,ISHUIRUPDQFHLVRQWDUJHWDJDLQVWWKHWDUJHWWKLVLVKLJKOLJKWHGLQ*UHHQ
,ISHUIRUPDQFHLVVOLJKWO\EHORZWDUJHWLWLVKLJKOLJKWHGLQ$PEHU
3HUIRUPDQFHVLJQLILFDQWO\XQGHUDFKLHYLQJLVKLJKOLJKWHGLQ5HG

$533HUI5HS



13 52

3DJHRI

)HE

.,

23$<

23$<

1'5
23$<

&ROOHFWLRQRI%XVLQHVV5DWHV

1'5

.H\QRWHV
7KHUHKDYHEHHQSHUIRUPDQFHLVVXHVGXHWRWKHFKDQJHRYHULQ,&7
,QIUDVWUXFWXUHZKLFKKDYHKDGDQDGYHUVHHIIHFWRQRXU%XVLQHVV3URFHVVHV
WKLVFRPELQHGZLWKDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHQXPEHURIFKDQJHVUHFHLYHGIURP
FODLPDQWVKDVFRQWULEXWHGWRWKHRYHUWDUJHW\HDUWRGDWHILJXUH'XULQJ)HE
%HQHILWV2IILFHUVOHIWWKHSDUWQHUVKLSDQGUHFUXLWPHQWWRWKHVHVSRVWVKDV
FRPPHQFHG'HVSLWHWKHVHLVVXHV7KHPRQWKO\SHUIRUPDQFHILJXUHIRU)HE
LVGD\V

%\PLQLPLVLQJWKHOHYHOVRI/RFDO$XWKRULW\%HQHILW2YHUSD\PHQWVWKH/RFDO
$XWKRULW\ZLOOJHWDQDGGLWLRQDODPRXQWRIVXEVLG\LQFRPHDVDUHZDUGIRU
DFFXUDF\LQSURFHVVLQJFKDQJHV

23$<

&KDQJHVWRWKHFROOHFWLRQIXQG
&KDQJHVLQ&RXQFLO7D[3URSHUWLHV%DQG'7D[EDVHHTXLYDOHQWV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

.3,
1,

&7.

1'.
.,

1'.

&7.

&7.

.H\,QGLFDWRU'HVFULSWLRQ
UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

/$(UURUDQGDGPLQGHOD\2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHGLQWKHSHULRGDVDRIWRWDO
FRUUHFWEHQHILWVSDLG
,Q<HDU9DOXHRI)UDXG2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHG

&ROOHFWLRQRI2YHUSD\PHQWV ([FOXGLQJ)UDXG

RI(OLJLEOH%XVLQHVVHVFODLPLQJ6PDOO%XVLQHVV5DWH5HOLHI

&ROOHFWHGRI2ULJLQDO&RXQFLO7D[GHEW

RI3D\HUVSD\LQJE\(OHFWURQLF0HWKRGV

&ROOHFWLRQRI&RXQFLO7D[

&7$;

&7$;

&7$;



























1$

$UUHDUV#0DU



1D

1D

1D

1D









1D






&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ











1D



1RWFRPSOHWH








$QQXDO


$FWXDO)HE

<7'


7DUJHW
$QQXDO

1D
1D
3URSHUWLHV#0DU

1D

1D

1D

1D










1D

1D











$FWXDO


$FWXDO


$53$QQXDO7DUJHWV ,QGLFDWRUVE\$XWKRULW\

%UHFNODQG&RXQFLO
1,
'HVFULSWLRQ
'D\VWDNHQWRSURFHVV+RXVLQJ%HQHILW&RXQFLO7D[%HQHILWQHZFODLPV 
FKDQJHV

/3,
'HVFULSWLRQ
%HQHILW7DNHXS 7KHFXUUHQW%HQHILW&DVHORDG
%(1
$FFXUDF\LQ3URFHVVLQJ
%(1

53 14




4WU

4WU








%DQG'#0DU



































&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ )HEUXDU\







1D
1D

)HEUXDU\
5HGXFWLRQ



  

  

  

  

  

  







4WU )HEUXDU\

4WU )HEUXDU\

  




4WU

4WU

1D
1D
&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ




















4WU

4WU

J

J
J
J
J

J
J
J
J
J
J
J
J
J
J

L

6WDWXV

)HE

.,

23$<

23$<

1'5
23$<

&ROOHFWLRQRI%XVLQHVV5DWHV

1'5

7KHUHKDVEHHQDVKLIWRIFLUFDRIWKHQHWFROOHFWDEOHGHELWIURP$SU
-DQZKLFKLVQRZGXHLQ)HE0DU+RZHYHUDOOHIIRUWVDUHEHLQJPDGHWR
SXUVXHDOORXVWDQGLQJGHEWV
%\PLQLPLVLQJWKHOHYHOVRI/RFDO$XWKRULW\%HQHILW2YHUSD\PHQWVWKH/RFDO
$XWKRULW\ZLOOJHWDQDGGLWLRQDODPRXQWRIVXEVLG\LQFRPHDVDUHZDUGIRU
DFFXUDF\LQSURFHVVLQJFKDQJHV
7KHUHKDVEHHQDVWHDG\LQFUHDVHLQWKHQXPEHUVRI%XVLQHVVHVQRWFODLPLQJ
WKLVUHOLHI7KHWHDPLVXQGHUWDNLQJDQXSWDNHGULYHWRHQVXUHWKHHQGRI\HDU
WDUJHWLVPHW

&7$;

1'5

23$<

.H\QRWHV
7KHUHKDYHEHHQSHUIRUPDQFHLVVXHVGXHWRWKHFKDQJHRYHULQ,&7
,QIUDVWUXFWXUHZKLFKKDYHKDGDQDGYHUVHHIIHFWRQRXU%XVLQHVV3URFHVVHV
WKLVFRPELQHGZLWKDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHQXPEHURIFKDQJHVUHFHLYHGIURP
FODLPDQWVKDVFRQWULEXWHGWRWKHRYHUWDUJHW\HDUWRGDWHILJXUH'XULQJ)HE
%HQHILWV2IILFHUVOHIWWKHSDUWQHUVKLSDQGUHFUXLWPHQWWRWKHVHVSRVWVKDV
FRPPHQFHG'HVSLWHWKHVHLVVXHV7KHPRQWKO\SHUIRUPDQFHILJXUHIRU)HE
LVGD\V

&KDQJHVWRWKHFROOHFWLRQIXQG
&KDQJHVLQ&RXQFLO7D[3URSHUWLHV%DQG'7D[EDVHHTXLYDOHQWV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

.3,
1,

&7.

1'.
.,

1'.

&7.

&7.

.H\,QGLFDWRU'HVFULSWLRQ
UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

/$(UURUDQGDGPLQGHOD\2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHGLQWKHSHULRGDVDRIWRWDO
FRUUHFWEHQHILWVSDLG
,Q<HDU9DOXHRI)UDXG2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHG

&ROOHFWLRQRI2YHUSD\PHQWV ([FOXGLQJ)UDXG

RI(OLJLEOH%XVLQHVVHVFODLPLQJ6PDOO%XVLQHVV5DWH5HOLHI

&ROOHFWHGRI2ULJLQDO&RXQFLO7D[GHEW

RI3D\HUVSD\LQJE\(OHFWURQLF0HWKRGV

&ROOHFWLRQRI&RXQFLO7D[

$FFXUDF\LQ3URFHVVLQJ

'HVFULSWLRQ
%HQHILW7DNHXS 7KHFXUUHQW%HQHILW&DVHORDG

&7$;

&7$;

&7$;

%(1

%(1


/3,























1$

$UUHDUV#0DU



1D

1D

1D

1D















1RWFRPSOHWH







$FWXDO)HE

<7'


$QQXDO

7DUJHW
$QQXDO


&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ











1D












$FWXDO


1D
1D
3URSHUWLHV#0DU

1D

1D

1D

1D










1D

1D










$FWXDO


$53$QQXDO7DUJHWV ,QGLFDWRUVE\$XWKRULW\

'D\VWDNHQWRSURFHVV+RXVLQJ%HQHILW&RXQFLO7D[%HQHILWQHZFODLPV 
FKDQJHV

)RUHVW+HDWK
1,
'HVFULSWLRQ

15 54




4WU

4WU








%DQG'#0DU



































&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ )HEUXDU\







1D
1D

5HGXFWLRQ
)HEUXDU\



  

  

  

  

  

  







4WU )HEUXDU\

4WU )HEUXDU\

  




4WU

4WU

1D
1D
&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ




















4WU

4WU

J

J
J
J
J

J
J
K
J
J
J
J
J
J
J

K

6WDWXV

)HE

&7.

.,

23$<

23$<

1'5
23$<

&ROOHFWLRQRI%XVLQHVV5DWHV

1'5

7KHUHKDVEHHQDVKLIWRIFLUFDRIWKHQHWFROOHFWDEOHGHELWIURP$SU
-DQZKLFKLVQRZGXHLQ)HE0DU+RZHYHUDOOHIIRUWVDUHEHLQJPDGHWR
SXUVXHDOORXVWDQGLQJGHEWV
%\PLQLPLVLQJWKHOHYHOVRI/RFDO$XWKRULW\%HQHILW2YHUSD\PHQWVWKH/RFDO
$XWKRULW\ZLOOJHWDQDGGLWLRQDODPRXQWRIVXEVLG\LQFRPHDVDUHZDUGIRU
DFFXUDF\LQSURFHVVLQJFKDQJHV

1'5

23$<

.H\QRWHV
7KHUHKDYHEHHQSHUIRUPDQFHLVVXHVGXHWRWKHFKDQJHRYHULQ,&7
,QIUDVWUXFWXUHZKLFKKDYHKDGDQDGYHUVHHIIHFWRQRXU%XVLQHVV3URFHVVHV
WKLVFRPELQHGZLWKDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHQXPEHURIFKDQJHVUHFHLYHGIURP
FODLPDQWVKDVFRQWULEXWHGWRWKHRYHUWDUJHW\HDUWRGDWHILJXUH'XULQJ)HE
%HQHILWV2IILFHUVOHIWWKHSDUWQHUVKLSDQGUHFUXLWPHQWWRWKHVHVSRVWVKDV
FRPPHQFHG'HVSLWHWKHVHLVVXHV7KHPRQWKO\SHUIRUPDQFHILJXUHIRU)HE
LVGD\V

&KDQJHVWRWKHFROOHFWLRQIXQG
&KDQJHVLQ&RXQFLO7D[3URSHUWLHV%DQG'7D[EDVHHTXLYDOHQWV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

.3,
1,

&7.

1'.
.,

1'.

&7.

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

.H\,QGLFDWRU'HVFULSWLRQ
UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

/$(UURUDQGDGPLQGHOD\2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHGLQWKHSHULRGDVDRIWRWDO
FRUUHFWEHQHILWVSDLG
,Q<HDU9DOXHRI)UDXG2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHG

&ROOHFWLRQRI2YHUSD\PHQWV ([FOXGLQJ)UDXG

RI(OLJLEOH%XVLQHVVHVFODLPLQJ6PDOO%XVLQHVV5DWH5HOLHI

&ROOHFWHGRI2ULJLQDO&RXQFLO7D[GHEW

RI3D\HUVSD\LQJE\(OHFWURQLF0HWKRGV

&ROOHFWLRQRI&RXQFLO7D[

$FFXUDF\LQ3URFHVVLQJ

'HVFULSWLRQ
%HQHILW7DNHXS 7KHFXUUHQW%HQHILW&DVHORDG









1$
$UUHDUV#0DU



1D

1D

1D

1D































1RWFRPSOHWH







$FWXDO)HE

<7'


$QQXDO

7DUJHW
$QQXDO


&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ











1D












$FWXDO


1D
1D
3URSHUWLHV#0DU

1D

1D

1D

1D










1D

1D










$FWXDO


$53$QQXDO7DUJHWV ,QGLFDWRUVE\$XWKRULW\

'D\VWDNHQWRSURFHVV+RXVLQJ%HQHILW&RXQFLO7D[%HQHILWQHZFODLPV 
FKDQJHV

&7$;

&7$;

&7$;

%(1

%(1


/3,

(DVW&DPEV
1,
'HVFULSWLRQ

55 16




4WU

4WU








%DQG'#0DU



































&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ )HEUXDU\







1D
1D

)HEUXDU\
5HGXFWLRQ



  

  

  

  

  

  







4WU )HEUXDU\

4WU )HEUXDU\

  




4WU

4WU

1D
1D
&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ




















4WU

4WU

J

J
J
J
J

J
J
J
J
J
L
J
J
J
J

K

6WDWXV

)HE

.,

23$<

23$<

1'5
23$<

&ROOHFWLRQRI%XVLQHVV5DWHV

1'5

.H\QRWHV
7KHUHKDYHEHHQSHUIRUPDQFHLVVXHVGXHWRWKHFKDQJHRYHULQ,&7
,QIUDVWUXFWXUHZKLFKKDYHKDGDQDGYHUVHHIIHFWRQRXU%XVLQHVV3URFHVVHV
WKLVFRPELQHGZLWKDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHQXPEHURIFKDQJHVUHFHLYHGIURP
FODLPDQWVKDVFRQWULEXWHGWRWKHRYHUWDUJHW\HDUWRGDWHILJXUH'XULQJ)HE
%HQHILWV2IILFHUVOHIWWKHSDUWQHUVKLSDQGUHFUXLWPHQWWRWKHVHVSRVWVKDV
FRPPHQFHG'HVSLWHWKHVHLVVXHV7KHPRQWKO\SHUIRUPDQFHILJXUHIRU)HE
LVGD\V

%\PLQLPLVLQJWKHOHYHOVRI/RFDO$XWKRULW\%HQHILW2YHUSD\PHQWVWKH/RFDO
$XWKRULW\ZLOOJHWDQDGGLWLRQDODPRXQWRIVXEVLG\LQFRPHDVDUHZDUGIRU
DFFXUDF\LQSURFHVVLQJFKDQJHV

23$<

&KDQJHVWRWKHFROOHFWLRQIXQG
&KDQJHVLQ&RXQFLO7D[3URSHUWLHV%DQG'7D[EDVHHTXLYDOHQWV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V%XVLQHVV5DWHV$UUHDUV

UHGXFWLRQLQDOO<HDUV&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

.3,
1,

&7.

1'.
.,

1'.

&7.

&7.

.H\,QGLFDWRU'HVFULSWLRQ
UHGXFWLRQLQ3UHYLRXV<HDU V&RXQFLO7D[$UUHDUV

/$(UURUDQGDGPLQGHOD\2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHGLQWKHSHULRGDVDRIWRWDO
FRUUHFWEHQHILWVSDLG
,Q<HDU9DOXHRI)UDXG2YHUSD\PHQWVUDLVHG

&ROOHFWLRQRI2YHUSD\PHQWV ([FOXGLQJ)UDXG

RI(OLJLEOH%XVLQHVVHVFODLPLQJ6PDOO%XVLQHVV5DWH5HOLHI

&ROOHFWHGRI2ULJLQDO&RXQFLO7D[GHEW

RI3D\HUVSD\LQJE\(OHFWURQLF0HWKRGV

&ROOHFWLRQRI&RXQFLO7D[

$FFXUDF\LQ3URFHVVLQJ

'HVFULSWLRQ
%HQHILW7DNHXS 7KHFXUUHQW%HQHILW&DVHORDG

&7$;

&7$;

&7$;

%(1

%(1


/3,















1RW&RPSOHWH













1$

$UUHDUV#0DU









1D







<7'

$FWXDO)HE


&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ

1D

1D

1D




1D







1D








$QQXDO

7DUJHW
$QQXDO

1D
1D
3URSHUWLHV#0DU

1D

1D

1D

1D


1D



1D



1D

1D







1D
1$




$FWXDO





$FWXDO


$53$QQXDO7DUJHWV ,QGLFDWRUVE\$XWKRULW\

'D\VWDNHQWRSURFHVV+RXVLQJ%HQHILW&RXQFLO7D[%HQHILWQHZFODLPV 
FKDQJHV LQF%XON8SORDGV

6W(GPXQGVEXU\
1,
'HVFULSWLRQ

17 56




4WU

4WU










%DQG'#0DU














)HEUXDU\





















&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ )HEUXDU\







1D



  

  

  

  

  

  







4WU )HEUXDU\

4WU )HEUXDU\

  




4WU

4WU

1D
1D
1D
&XUUHQW3RVLWLRQ 5HGXFWLRQ




















4WU

4WU

J

J
J
J
J

J
J
J
J
K
J
J
J
J
J

K

6WDWXV

Agenda Item 10


%5(&./$1'&281&,/

    
   
   ! " #$ %&'"  '&(&& ) 
$* )! $+ ,-! $+* -+! ./ -!
$)

,
0U0-1DLUQ
0U75&DUWHU &KDLUPDQ 
0U6*%DPEULGJH


0U.6*LOEHUW
0U065RELQVRQ


 +
+HOHQ0F$OHHU
/HDQQH1HDYH
0DUN6WRNHV


 6HQLRU&RPPLWWHH2IILFHU
 0HPEHU7UDLQHU
 'HSXW\&KLHI([HFXWLYH





+ 



01'"   , 23   '4




7KH 0LQXWHV RI WKH PHHWLQJ KHOG RQ  -DQXDU\  ZHUH
FRQILUPHGDVDFRUUHFWUHFRUG

51'"   3 , 23   %4


$SRORJLHVIRUDEVHQFHZHUHUHFHLYHGIURP0U-HUP\

61'"  1 77   3 23   84


7KH'HSXW\&KLHI([HFXWLYHZDVSUHVHQWIRUWKLVLWHP

+H QRWHG WKDW WKH GUDIW SOHGJH KDG VHHQ D ORW RI GLVFXVVLRQ DQG
IURP FRPPHQWV PDGH DW SUHYLRXV PHHWLQJV KH VXJJHVWHG WKDW
XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ µ&DVH +DQGOLQJ¶ WKH WKLUG EXOOHW SRLQW VKRXOG EH
UHPRYHGRUDPHQGHGDVLWDGGHGQRYDOXH

:LWK UHJDUG WR WKH PHDQLQJ RI µLPSRUWDQW¶ ZKLFK KDG EHHQ WKH
VXEMHFW RI PXFK GLVFXVVLRQ DW WKH SUHYLRXV PHHWLQJ KH GUHZ
0HPEHUV¶DWWHQWLRQWRWKHILUVWWKUHHSDUDJUDSKVRIWKHSOHGJHZKLFK
KH WKRXJKW PDGH FOHDU ZKDW 0HPEHUV QHHGHG WR EH LQIRUPHG
DERXW+HVXJJHVWHGWKDWWKHILQDOVHQWHQFHEHDPHQGHGWRUHDG

,W LV LPSRUWDQW WKDW PHPEHUV DUH IXOO\ LQIRUPHG DERXW DOO
PDWWHUVRQZKLFKWKH\PD\EHUHTXLUHGWRPDNHGHFLVLRQVRU
ZKLFK DIIHFW WKHLU ZDUGV WR VXSSRUW WKHP LQ WKHLU
FRPPXQLW\OHDGHUVKLSUROH


57











0HPEHU'HYHORSPHQW3DQHO
$SULO

+  




0HPEHUVVXSSRUWHGWKDWDPHQGPHQWDQGJDYHFRQVLGHUDWLRQWRWKH
UHPRYDO RI WKH EXOOHW SRLQW  $IWHU VRPH GLVFXVVLRQ LW ZDV DJUHHG
WKDWLWVKRXOGEHUHWDLQHGEXWDPHQGHGWRUHDG

:KHUHDWUHQGLVRFFXUULQJZLWKLQDZDUG±HJDQXPEHURI
FRPSODLQWVDERXWDVSHFLILFLVVXH

7KHDPHQGHGYHUVLRQZDV3 

7KH 'HSXW\ &KLHI ([HFXWLYH FRQILUPHG WKDW0DQDJHUV KDG DOUHDG\
VHHQ WKH 3OHGJH  1RZ WKDW WKHILQDO YHUVLRQ KDGEHHQ DJUHHGWKH
7UDLQLQJ7HDPZRXOGZRUNWRHQVXUHWKDWDOO2IILFHUVZHUHDZDUHRI
LW

7KH0HPEHU7UDLQHUDGYLVHGWKDWVKHKDGUHFHQWO\UXQDFRXUVHRQ
3ROLWLFDO $ZDUHQHVV ZKLFK KDG EHHQ YHU\ ZHOO UHFHLYHG  7KH
3OHGJHOLQNHGZHOOZLWKWKDWWUDLQLQJDQGZRXOGEHLQFOXGHGDVSDUW
RI WKH LQGXFWLRQ IRU QHZ VWDII DV ZHOO DV EHLQJ UROOHG RXW WR DOO
2IILFHUV

0U5RELQVRQQRWHGWKDWLWZRXOGEHXVHIXOIRUQHZ0HPEHUVWRR
'&1'" 

  

  3 23   04


D )LQDQFH5HSRUW





7KH 0HPEHU 7UDLQHU DVNHG 0HPEHUV WR QRWH WKH ILJXUHV IRU WKH
 EXGJHW ZKLFK VKRZHG WKH EDODQFH DV DW  0DUFK
7KHUHZHUHDIHZLWHPVRXWVWDQGLQJZKLFKDPRXQWHGWRDFRXSOH
RIKXQGUHGSRXQGVZKLFKKDGUHVXOWHGLQDERXW EHLQJOHIW
LQ WKH EXGJHW RQ  0DUFK   7KH QHZ EXGJHW IRU 
ZDV 

7KH &KDLUPDQ QRWHG WKDW WKH EXGJHW KDG UHGXFHG GHVSLWH PRUH
KDYLQJEHHQVSHQWRQWUDLQLQJLQ7KHDLPZDVWRXVHWKH
%UHFNODQG7UDLQLQJ6HUYLFHPRUHLQIXWXUHWRWU\WRUHGXFHVSHQG
+HDVNHGLIWKHUHPDLQLQJEXGJHWKDGEHHQFDUULHGRYHUDQGZDV
DGYLVHGWKDWLWKDGQRW

,W ZDV SRLQWHG RXW WKDW WKUHH 0HPEHUV KDG DWWHQGHG /HDGHUVKLS
WUDLQLQJZKLFKZDVXQXVXDO

7KH &KDLUPDQ ZDV DZDUH WKDW WKUHH SHRSOH KDG DSSOLHG IRU WKH
3ODQQLQJ6XPPHU6FKRROZKLFKZRXOGFRVWDERXW 7KHUH
KDGEHHQWKUHH3ODQQLQJ$GYLVRU\6HUYLFHHYHQWVLQWKHODVWHLJKW
PRQWK DQG WKH\ KDG EHHQ H[FHOOHQW DQG IUHH \HW WKH\ KDG QRW
EHHQ DWWHQGHG E\ WKH SHRSOH WKDW ZDQWHG WR JR RQ WKH SDLG IRU
FRXUVH+HWKRXJKWWKDWSHRSOHVKRXOGDWWHQGIUHHFRXUVHVZKHQ
WKH\ZHUHUHOHYDQW



58






0HPEHU'HYHORSPHQW3DQHO
$SULO

+  



0U %DPEULGJH DJUHHG HQWLUHO\  +H VXJJHVWHG WKDW WKH 3ODQQLQJ
$GYLVRU\6HUYLFHVKRXOGEHIRUPDOO\LQYLWHGWRYLVLWWKH&RXQFLOWR
JLYHRQHRIWKHLUIUHHFRXUVHV

0U5RELQVRQVXJJHVWHGDQGLWZDVDJUHHGWKDWDIRUPDOUHTXHVW
VKRXOG EH PDGH WR WKH 3RUWIROLR +ROGHU  ,W ZRXOG SURYLGH D IUHH
GD\¶V WUDLQLQJ IRU 0HPEHUV RI D SXEOLF IDFLQJ &RPPLWWHH ZKLFK
GHDOWZLWKFRQWHQWLRXVLVVXHV

0U *LOEHUW DVNHG LI WKHUH ZRXOG EH D FKDUJH LI 0HPEHUV ZHUH
WUDLQHG E\ WKH %UHFNODQG 7UDLQLQJ 6HUYLFH DQG LW ZDV FRQILUPHG
WKDWWKHWUDLQLQJZRXOGEHIUHH

7KH 0HPEHU 7UDLQHU DGYLVHG WKDW WKH WUDLQLQJ SURJUDPPH ZRXOG
EH SULPDULO\ SURYLGHG E\ KHUVHOI DQG WKH 7UDLQLQJ DQG
'HYHORSPHQW0DQDJHUQRWE\WKH%UHFNODQG7UDLQLQJ6HUYLFH

7KHUHSRUWZDVQRWHG


E 7UDLQLQJ)HHGEDFN



)HHGEDFN VKHHWV IURP WKH 6RFLDO 0HGLD 7UDLQLQJ FRXUVH ZHUH
WDEOHGIRUQRWLQJ


F 7UDLQLQJ3URJUDPPH



7KH 0HPEHU 7UDLQHU WROG WKH 3DQHO WKDW 6HOI$VVHVVPHQW
4XHVWLRQQDLUHVKDGEHHQILOOHGRXWE\0HPEHUVDQGILYHPRUH
ZHUH QHHGHG WR PHHW WKH  WDUJHW  7KH  RXWVWDQGLQJ
0HPEHUVKDGEHHQHPDLOHGDUHPLQGHU

7KH&KDLUPDQVDLGWKDWKHZRXOGFRQWDFWWKH'HSXW\/HDGHUDQG
DVNKLPWRPHQWLRQWKHPDWWHUDWWKHQH[W&RXQFLOPHHWLQJ

)URPWKHUHVSRQVHVUHFHLYHGDWUDLQLQJSURJUDPPHKDGEHHQ
GUDZQXS2SWLRQVKDGEHHQSURYLGHGDQG0HPEHUVZHUHDVNHG
WR FKRRVH WKH PRVW VXLWDEOH RSWLRQ  7KH GUDIW SURJUDPPH ZDV
WDEOHG

0HPEHUV ORRNHG DW WKH 7UDLQLQJ 3URJUDPPH DQG DJUHHG WKH
IROORZLQJRSWLRQV

$ 
7KHUHZDVGLVFXVVLRQRQWKHPHULWVRIXVLQJ'DYLG0F*UDWKDVD
WUDLQHU  ,W ZDV DFNQRZOHGJHG WKDW KH KDG D JUHDW GHDO RI
H[SHULHQFHDQGEHLQJDQH[&RXQFLOORUKDGDFOHDUXQGHUVWDQGLQJ
RI PDWWHUV IURP D &RXQFLOORU¶V SHUVSHFWLYH EXW ZHLJKHG DJDLQVW
WKDWZDVWKHFRVWRIKLVVHUYLFHV
,WZDVVXJJHVWHGWKDW&RXQFLOORUVIURPRWKHUDXWKRULWLHVFRXOGEH
LQYLWHGDQGFKDUJHGIRUWKHWUDLQLQJWRFRYHUWKHFRVWV
7KH0HPEHU7UDLQHUSRLQWHGRXWWKDWWKH7RZQ 3DULVK&RXQFLOV


59









0HPEHU'HYHORSPHQW3DQHO
$SULO

+  



KDGEHHQFKDUJHGWRDWWHQGWUDLQLQJEXWWKHPRQH\KDGQRWEHHQ
SXWEDFNLQWRWKH0HPEHU7UDLQLQJEXGJHW
+92SWLRQVDQGDJUHHGDQG2SWLRQDJUHHGVXEMHFW
WRHQRXJKSODFHVEHLQJERRNHG

-/+ ,#*
7RZQ DQG 3DULVK &RXQFLOORUV VKRXOG EH LQYLWHG WR WKH FRXUVH WR
UHFRXSVRPHRIWKHFRVWV2WKHU/RFDO$XWKRULWLHVFRXOGDOVREH
LQYLWHG,WZDVIHOWWKHUHZDVVFRSHWRUHYLHZWKHUDWHFKDUJHGIRU
WUDLQLQJGHSHQGLQJRQWKHVXEMHFWPDWWHU
+92SWLRQDJUHHG

))-+ +: ; ) ;$ 1  ;
+)#< -1 $* ; ; = $ -+
,WZDVVXJJHVWHGWKDWWKHWKUHHWRSLFVFRXOGEHFRPELQHGLQRQH
WUDLQLQJVHVVLRQ
0U5RELQVRQZDVNHHQIRUQHZ&RXQFLOORUVWREHPHQWRUHGWRKHOS
GHYHORSWKHLUUROHVDVFRPPXQLW\OHDGHUV7KH&KDLUPDQDJUHHG 
DQGDVNHGIRUWKDWWREHSXWRQDIXWXUHDJHQGD
:
+97KHWKUHHFRXUVHVWREHUXQDVDFRPELQHGHYHQW

,+ 
7KLV FRXUVH KDG DOUHDG\ EHHQ UXQ DW 6RXWK +ROODQG DQG ZDV D
KDQGVRQH[SHULHQFHIRFXVVLQJRQDOODUHDVRILQWHUHVW
+92SWLRQDJUHHG

 $ ,-$$
+9 $JUHHG WR KROG WKLV VXEMHFW LQ UHVHUYH DV LW PLJKW EH
FRYHUHG E\ WKH 6RFLDO 0HGLD FRXUVH DQGRU WKH &RPPXQLFDWLQJ
HIIHFWLYHO\WUDLQLQJVHVVLRQV

>)
7KHUHZDVQRWHQRXJKLQWHUHVWLQWKLVWRUXQDFRXUVH+RZHYHULW
ZDV VXJJHVWHG WKDW VRPH 0HPEHUV QHHGHG PRUH EDVLF ,&7
WUDLQLQJDQGWKDWZDVDQDUHDWKDWQHHGHGWREHUHVROYHG
+9 2SWLRQ  DJUHHG  ,QGLYLGXDO RQHWRRQH VHVVLRQV
ZRXOGEHKHOG

)#-$ ? $ 1 <+ 1 ;$
0U %DPEULGJH VXJJHVWHG WKDW VFKRROV ZRXOG EH ZLOOLQJ WR JLYH
&RXQFLOORUV EDVLF WUDLQLQJ  0U 5RELQVRQ WKRXJKW WKDW &RXQFLOORUV
VKRXOGEHVLJQSRVWHGWRIUHHWUDLQLQJRSSRUWXQLWLHV
+9  %DVLF :RUG WUDLQLQJ RQO\ WR EH SURYLGHG DQG ZRXOG
LQFOXGHWUDLQLQJLQWKHOD\RXWRIOHWWHUVHWF

) )
7KH&KDLUPDQUHTXHVWHGWKDWWKHFRXUVHVKRXOGHQFRPSDVV:RUN
/LIHEDODQFH
+92SWLRQDJUHHG

 ;  ) 1 $:; *


60

0HPEHU'HYHORSPHQW3DQHO
$SULO

+  



+9  2SWLRQ   DQG  DJUHHG WRJHWKHU ZLWK DGGLWLRQDO
YLGHR LQWHUYLHZ WUDLQLQJ RQ VXFFHVVIXO FRPSOHWLRQ RI DOO WKUHH
VWHSV

+$ 1 )/$ $#
$OWKRXJK RQO\ RQH 0HPEHU KDG VLJQHG XS IRU WKH WRSLF LW ZDV
WKRXJKWWKDWWKHUHPLJKWEHRWKHUVWKDWZHUHQRWFRQILGHQWLQWKHLU
UHODWLRQVKLSZLWKRIILFHUV
+92SWLRQDJUHHG




''1'"   =  , 
  7   23   54



0HPEHUV ZHUH XSGDWHG RQ WKH SUHSDUDWLRQV IRU WKH QH[W 7RZQ 
3DULVK&RXQFLO)RUXPZKLFKZRXOGWDNHSODFHRQ7XHVGD\0D\
DW(OL]DEHWK+RXVHLQ'HUHKDP

,QYLWDWLRQV KDG EHHQ LVVXHG WR DOO &OHUNV RI 7RZQ DQG 3DULVK
&RXQFLOV DQG WR DOO 'LVWULFW &RXQFLOORUV  7KH LQYLWDWLRQV KDG EHHQ
VHQW RQ  0DUFK  DQG WR GDWH  3DULVKHV DQG ILYH 'LVWULFW
&RXQFLOORUV KDG UHVSRQGHG  5HPLQGHUV ZRXOG EH VHQW RXW RQ 
0D\

$JHQGDWRSLFVVRIDUZHUH

• &RGHRI&RQGXFW6WDQGDUGV
• /RFDO'HYHORSPHQW3ODQ
• 7UDLQLQJDYDLODEOHIRU3DULVKHV

7KH &OHUNV KDG EHHQ DVNHG WR SXW IRUZDUG DQ\ RWKHU WRSLFV WKH\
ZRXOGEHLQWHUHVWHGLQDVKDGWKH6KDUHG0DQDJHPHQW7HDP


'%1'" @  3 23   64



7KH DUUDQJHPHQWV IRU WKH QH[W PHHWLQJ RQ  0D\  ZHUH
QRWHG



7KHPHHWLQJFORVHGDWDP



&+$,50$1



61

